# Declarations: With God's Words, You Will Overcome!

-Book 1: Spiritual Warfare-

By

Dawn M. Flores

# Declarations: With God's Words, You Will Overcome!

-Book 1: Spiritual Warfare-

By Dawn M. Flores

#### © 2020 Dawn M. Flores. First Edition

Synergy of the Ages NW

**Glory Fire Army International Ministries** 

Scriptures: World English Bible (WEB)

by Public Domain. The name "World English Bible" is trademarked.

### **Contents**

Power1		
4	The Power of the Lord Will Keep You Where He Has Called You!	2
4	You Will Transform Regions by Your Presence!	6
4	You are the Shining Image of Christ on Earth!	9
4	Prayers are Igniting Torches of Righteousness Throughout the Land!	12
4	God is on the Throne Removing the Wicked From the Righteous!	16
Со	nsecration	20
4	Consecrate Yourselves – The Scroll Will Soon Be Opened!	21
4	Consecrate Yourselves – the Shofar is Sounding!	25
4	God has Called You Out as His Kingdom Comes to Earth!	29
Pro	otection	33
4	I Am at Peace for I Am Surrounded by a Wall of Fire!	34
4	You are Protected by the Spirit of God!	
4	In God's Presence & by His Mercy You Will Remain Secure!	41
Sp	iritual Warfare	44
4	God is Calling His Strong & Bold Warriors to Pray During the Night Watch!	45
4	As Worship Warriors You Reveal Christ on Earth!	49
Ris	sing Above	52
4	The Snares Have Failed – You are Moving Upward in the Name of Jesus Christ!	53
4	By God's Spirit You Have Arisen Stronger than Ever Before!	57
4	The Obedient of the Lord are Being Raised Up!	61
4	Hell Cannot Stop the Goodness & Mercy of God!	65
- 4	The Lord is Showing the Way – He is Your Supply!	69

### Power

#### The Power of the Lord Will Keep You Where He Has Called You!

Exodus 15:2-7; 2 Samuel 5:10-12; Jeremiah 16:19-21; 42:7-18; Acts 4:8-17, 25-31 (WEB)

#### Exodus 15:2-7

<sup>2</sup>Yah is my strength and song.

He has become my salvation.

This is my God, and I will praise him;

my father's God, and I will exalt him.

<sup>3</sup>Yahweh is a man of war.

Yahweh is his name.

<sup>4</sup>He has cast Pharaoh's chariots and his army into the sea.

His chosen captains are sunk in the Red Sea.

<sup>5</sup> The deeps cover them.

They went down into the depths like a stone.

<sup>6</sup>Your right hand, Yahweh, is glorious in power.

Your right hand, Yahweh, dashes the enemy in pieces.

<sup>7</sup> In the greatness of your excellency, you overthrow those who rise up against you. You send out your wrath. It consumes them as stubble.

#### 2 Samuel 5:10-12

<sup>10</sup> David grew greater and greater; for Yahweh, the God of Armies, was with him. <sup>11</sup> Hiram king of Tyre sent messengers to David, with cedar trees, carpenters, and masons; and they built David a house. <sup>12</sup> David perceived that Yahweh had established him king over Israel, and that he had exalted his kingdom for his people Israel's sake.

#### Jeremiah 16:19-21

<sup>19</sup> Yahweh, my strength, and my stronghold,

and my refuge in the day of affliction,

the nations will come to you from the ends of the earth,

and will say,

"Our fathers have inherited nothing but lies,

vanity and things in which there is no profit.

<sup>20</sup> Should a man make to himself gods which yet are no gods?"

<sup>21</sup> "Therefore behold, I will cause them to know, this once I will cause them to know my hand and my might. Then they will know that my name is Yahweh."

#### Jeremiah 42:7-18

<sup>7</sup> After ten days, Yahweh's word came to Jeremiah. <sup>8</sup> Then he called Johanan the son of Kareah, and all the captains of the forces who were with him, and all the people from the least even to the greatest, <sup>9</sup> and said to them, "Yahweh, the God of Israel, to whom you sent me to present your supplication before him, says: <sup>10</sup> 'If you will still live in this land, then I will build you, and not pull you down, and I will plant you, and not pluck you up; for I grieve over the distress that I have brought on you. <sup>11</sup> Don't be afraid of the king of Babylon, of whom you are afraid. Don't be afraid of him,' says

Yahweh: 'for I am with you to save you, and to deliver you from his hand. <sup>12</sup> I will grant you mercy, that he may have mercy on you, and cause you to return to your own land.

<sup>13</sup> "'But if you say, "We will not dwell in this land;" so that you don't obey Yahweh your God's voice, <sup>14</sup> saying, "No; but we will go into the land of Egypt, where we will see no war, nor hear the sound of the trumpet, nor have hunger of bread; and there we will dwell:" <sup>15</sup> now therefore hear Yahweh's word, O remnant of Judah: Yahweh of Armies, the God of Israel, says, 'If you indeed set your faces to enter into Egypt, and go to live there; <sup>16</sup> then it will happen that the sword, which you fear, will overtake you there in the land of Egypt; and the famine, about which you are afraid, will follow close behind you there in Egypt; and you will die there. <sup>17</sup> So will it be with all the men who set their faces to go into Egypt to live there. They will die by the sword, by the famine, and by the pestilence. None of them will remain or escape from the evil that I will bring on them.' <sup>18</sup> For Yahweh of Armies, the God of Israel, says: 'As my anger and my wrath has been poured out on the inhabitants of Jerusalem, so my wrath will be poured out on you, when you enter into Egypt; and you will be an object of horror, an astonishment, a curse, and a reproach; and you will see this place no more.'

#### Acts 4:8-17, 25-31

<sup>8</sup>Then Peter, filled with the Holy Spirit, said to them, "You rulers of the people, and elders of Israel, <sup>9</sup> if we are examined today concerning a good deed done to a crippled man, by what means this man has been healed, <sup>10</sup> may it be known to you all, and to all the people of Israel, that in the name of Jesus Christ of Nazareth, whom you crucified, whom God raised from the dead, this man stands here before you whole in him. <sup>11</sup> He is 'the stone which was regarded as worthless by you, the builders, which has become the head of the corner.'<u>Psalm 118:22</u> <sup>12</sup> There is salvation in no one else, for there is no other name under heaven that is given among men, by which we must be saved!"

<sup>13</sup> Now when they saw the boldness of Peter and John, and had perceived that they were unlearned and ignorant men, they marveled. They recognized that they had been with Jesus. <sup>14</sup> Seeing the man who was healed standing with them, they could say nothing against it. <sup>15</sup> But when they had commanded them to go aside out of the council, they conferred among themselves, <sup>16</sup> saying, "What shall we do to these men? Because indeed a notable miracle has been done through them, as can be plainly seen by all who dwell in Jerusalem, and we can't deny it. <sup>17</sup> But so that this spreads no further among the people, let's threaten them, that from now on they don't speak to anyone in this name."

<sup>25</sup> who by the mouth of your servant, David, said,

'Why do the nations rage,

and the peoples plot a vain thing? <sup>26</sup> The kings of the earth take a stand,

and the rulers take council together,

against the Lord, and against his Christ.'Psalm 2:1-2

<sup>27</sup> "For truly, both Herod and Pontius Pilate, with the Gentiles and the people of Israel, were gathered together against your holy servant, Jesus, whom you anointed, <sup>28</sup> to do whatever your hand and your council foreordained to happen. <sup>29</sup> Now, Lord, look at their threats, and grant to your servants to speak your word with all boldness, <sup>30</sup> while you stretch out your hand to heal; and that signs and wonders may be done through the name of your holy Servant Jesus."

<sup>31</sup> When they had prayed, the place was shaken where they were gathered together. They were all filled with the Holy Spirit, and they spoke the word of God with boldness.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare the Lord/Yah is my STRENGTH and my Song, and He is my SALVATION! This is my God/'Elohai; I will EXALT Him! The Lord/Adonai is a WARRIOR; the Lord/Adonai is His Name!
- I decree and declare Your Right Hand, Lord/Adonai, is sublimely POWERFUL; Your Right Hand, Lord/Adonai, SHATTERS the foe. By Your Great MAJESTY You bring down Your enemies; You send out Your WRATH to consume them like stubble!
- I decree and declare, as you walk CLOSE with the Lord/Adonai, you will grow GREATER and GREATER, because the God of Armies/'Elohe Tzva'ot is with you! You will KNOW that the Lord/Adonai has POSITIONED you and increased your POWER for the sake of His People!
- I decree and declare You, Lord/Adonai, are my STRENGTH, my FORTRESS, my REFUGE in time of Trouble; the Nations will come to You from the Ends of the Earth; they will ADMIT that their ancestors inherited nothing but lies, futile idols, completely useless. The Lord/Adonai says, "Therefore, I will make them KNOW, once and for all, I will make them know my POWER and my MIGHT. Then they will know that My Name is the Lord/Adonai!"
- I decree and declare God's/Elohim's PROMISES are for the OBEDIENT. If you stay where He has brought you, then He will BUILD YOU UP, not pull you down; He will PLANT you and not uproot you; for the Lord/Adonai is relenting from the calamity He has inflicted on you. Don't be afraid of the rulers of who you are afraid. "DON'T BE AFRAID," says the Lord/Adonai, "for I AM WITH YOU to SAVE you and to RESCUE you from their power. I will take pity on you, so that they will take pity on you and CAUSE YOU TO RETURN to your own Land."
- I decree and declare if you will not STAY in the Land, God/Elohim has sent you to, thereby not heeding what He is saying, and instead say, "No, we will go to the Land of Egypt, because there we will not see war or hear the shofar sounding its alarm or be short of food, so we'll stay there," then hear what the Lord of Hosts/Adonai-Tzva'ot, says: "If you are determined to go to Egypt and stay there, the SWORD, of which you are afraid, will overtake you there in the Land of Egypt; and the FAMINE, of which you are afraid, will PURSUE you relentlessly there in Egypt; and there you will die.
- I decree and declare the sick and broken are RESTORED to Health in the Name of Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, whom was executed on the cross as a criminal but whom God RAISED from the dead, in order that they stand before you PERFECTLY HEALED! This Jesus/Yeshua from Nazareth is the STONE rejected by the builders which became the CORNERSTONE! There is SALVATION in no one else! For there is no other Name under heaven given to Mankind by whom we must be SAVED!
- I decree and declare BOLDNESS is increasing and is a sign of those who DWELL in the Presence of the Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua and are permeated by His Spirit/Ruach. Though you may be

untrained, the World and religious scholars will be AMAZED and RECOGNIZE that you have been with Jesus/Yeshua.

- I decree and declare the MIRACLES and HEALINGS will be irrefutable. Though the magistrates warn you to be silent and move out of their region, you will CONTINUE BOLDLY sharing of the Good News and TRUST in Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah and Him alone.
- I decree and declare it is by the POWER and PLAN of God Almighty/El Shaddai that Jesus/Yeshua was crucified. I praise You, Lord/Adonai, for YOU take note of their threats, and enable your Slaves to SPEAK Your Message with BOLDNESS! I thank You for You stretch out Your HAND to HEAL and to do SIGNS and MIRACLES through the Name of Your Holy Servant Jesus/Yeshua!"
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 14, 2019]

#### You Will Transform Regions by Your Presence!

Jeremiah 33:2-3, 12-14; Matthew 5:11-16; 2 Corinthians 4:1-11 (WEB)

#### Jeremiah 33:2-3, 12-14

<sup>2</sup> "Yahweh who does it, Yahweh who forms it to establish it—Yahweh is his name, says: <sup>3</sup> 'Call to me, and I will answer you, and will show you great and difficult things, which you don't know.'

<sup>12</sup> Yahweh of Armies says: "Yet again there will be in this place, which is waste, without man and without animal, and in all its cities, a habitation of shepherds causing their flocks to lie down. <sup>13</sup> In the cities of the hill country, in the cities of the lowland, in the cities of the South, in the land of Benjamin, in the places around Jerusalem, and in the cities of Judah, the flocks will again pass under the hands of him who counts them," says Yahweh.

<sup>14</sup> "Behold, the days come," says Yahweh, "that I will perform that good word which I have spoken concerning the house of Israel and concerning the house of Judah.

#### Matthew 5:11-16

<sup>11</sup> "Blessed are you when people reproach you, persecute you, and say all kinds of evil against you falsely, for my sake. <sup>12</sup> Rejoice, and be exceedingly glad, for great is your reward in heaven. For that is how they persecuted the prophets who were before you.

<sup>13</sup> "You are the salt of the earth, but if the salt has lost its flavor, with what will it be salted? It is then good for nothing, but to be cast out and trodden under the feet of men.

<sup>14</sup> You are the light of the world. A city located on a hill can't be hidden. <sup>15</sup> Neither do you light a lamp and put it under a measuring basket, but on a stand; and it shines to all who are in the house. <sup>16</sup> Even so, let your light shine before men, that they may see your good works and glorify your Father who is in heaven.

#### 2 Corinthians 4:1-11

Therefore seeing we have this ministry, even as we obtained mercy, we don't faint. <sup>2</sup> But we have renounced the hidden things of shame, not walking in craftiness, nor handling the word of God deceitfully, but by the manifestation of the truth commending ourselves to every man's conscience in the sight of God. <sup>3</sup> Even if our Good News is veiled, it is veiled in those who are dying, <sup>4</sup> in whom the god of this world has blinded the minds of the unbelieving, that the light of the Good News of the glory of Christ, who is the image of God, should not dawn on them. <sup>5</sup> For we don't preach ourselves, but Christ Jesus as Lord, and ourselves as your servants for Jesus' sake, <sup>6</sup> seeing it is God who said, "Light will shine out of darkness,"<u>Genesis 1:3</u> who has shone in our hearts to give the light of the knowledge of the glory of God in the face of Jesus Christ.

<sup>7</sup> But we have this treasure in clay vessels, that the exceeding greatness of the power may be of God, and not from ourselves. <sup>8</sup> We are pressed on every side, yet not crushed; perplexed, yet not to despair; <sup>9</sup> pursued, yet not forsaken; struck down, yet not destroyed; <sup>10</sup> always carrying in the body the putting to death of the Lord Jesus, that the life of Jesus may also be revealed in our body. <sup>11</sup> For we who live are always delivered to death for Jesus' sake, that the life also of Jesus may be revealed in our mortal flesh.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai Who formed the Universe says, "CALL OUT to Me, and I WILL ANSWER you I will tell you great things, hidden things of which you are unaware!"
- I decree and declare you will be directed to places that appear to be WASTELANDS, DESERTS without people or animals, to areas that are DESOLATE spiritually; these are the regions GOD IS TRANSFORMING! As you walk in Christ/Messiah, you CARRY His PRESENCE, HEALING and RESTORATION.
- I decree and declare God's CALL is upon the Land, His VOICE is reaching those He has set aside for this time. The lives that appear to be wasted will FLOURISH. The days are coming when He will FULFILL the GOOD that He has promised for you!
- I decree and declare YOU ARE BLESSED, because you have been insulted and persecuted, and people have told all kinds of vicious lies about you BECAUSE YOU FOLLOW CHRIST/MESSIAH! Rejoice, be glad, because your REWARD in Heaven is GREAT – they persecuted the Prophets before you in the same way.
- I decree and declare YOU ARE SALT for the Land! You are LIGHT for the World! The TRUTH and REVELATION of Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh is PENETRATING the darkness with the Good News of Christ Jesus/Yeshua Messiah! You will let your LIGHT SHINE before People, so that they may see the good things you do and praise your Father in Heaven!
- I decree and declare that you will not lose COURAGE as you do the WORK GOD HAS GIVEN YOU. You REFUSE to make use of shameful underhanded methods, employing deception or distorting God's message. You PRESENT the TRUTH clearly in the sight of God.
- I decree and declare you LIVE and BREATHE God's Word daily, so if the Good News is veiled, it is veiled only to those in the process of being lost. They do not come to trust because the god of the World has blinded their minds, in order to prevent them from seeing the LIGHT SHINING from the Good News about the Glory of Christ/Messiah, Who is the Image of God.
- I decree and declare the LIGHT is SHINING out of our Hearts, the LIGHT of the KNOWLEDGE of God's Glory SHINING in the face of Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua! This TREASURE of God is in Clay Jars, so that it will be EVIDENT that such OVERWHELMING POWER comes from God and not from us!
- I decree and declare we ALWAYS CARRY in our bodies the dying of Jesus/Yeshua, so that HIS LIFE may be MANIFESTED in our bodies. For we wo are alive are always being handed over to death for Jesus'/Yeshua's sake, so that His life also might be manifested in our mortal bodies.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 27, 2019]

#### You are the Shining Image of Christ on Earth!

Genesis 1:26-28; 1 Corinthians 15:45-53; 2 Corinthians 3:16-18; Colossians 3:1-17 (WEB)

#### Genesis 1:26-28

<sup>26</sup> God said, "Let's make man in our image, after our likeness. Let them have dominion over the fish of the sea, and over the birds of the sky, and over the livestock, and over all the earth, and over every creeping thing that creeps on the earth." <sup>27</sup> God created man in his own image. In God's image he created him; male and female he created them. <sup>28</sup> God blessed them. God said to them, "Be fruitful, multiply, fill the earth, and subdue it. Have dominion over the fish of the sea, over the birds of the sky, and over every living thing that moves on the earth."

#### 1 Corinthians 15:45-53

<sup>45</sup> So also it is written, "The first man, Adam, became a living soul." <u>Genesis 2:7</u> The last Adam became a life-giving spirit. <sup>46</sup> However that which is spiritual isn't first, but that which is natural, then that which is spiritual. <sup>47</sup> The first man is of the earth, made of dust. The second man is the Lord from heaven. <sup>48</sup> As is the one made of dust, such are those who are also made of dust; and as is the heavenly, such are they also that are heavenly. <sup>49</sup> As we have borne the image of those made of dust, let's also bear the image of the heavenly. <sup>50</sup> Now I say this, brothers, that flesh and blood can't inherit God's Kingdom; neither does the perishable inherit imperishable.

<sup>51</sup> Behold, I tell you a mystery. We will not all sleep, but we will all be changed, <sup>52</sup> in a moment, in the twinkling of an eye, at the last trumpet. For the trumpet will sound and the dead will be raised incorruptible, and we will be changed. <sup>53</sup> For this perishable body must become imperishable, and this mortal must put on immortality.

#### 2 Corinthians 3:16-18

<sup>16</sup> But whenever someone turns to the Lord, the veil is taken away. <sup>17</sup> Now the Lord is the Spirit and where the Spirit of the Lord is, there is liberty. <sup>18</sup> But we all, with unveiled face seeing the glory of the Lord as in a mirror, are transformed into the same image from glory to glory, even as from the Lord, the Spirit.

#### Colossians 3:1-17

If then you were raised together with Christ, seek the things that are above, where Christ is, seated on the right hand of God. <sup>2</sup> Set your mind on the things that are above, not on the things that are on the earth. <sup>3</sup> For you died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God. <sup>4</sup> When Christ, our life, is revealed, then you will also be revealed with him in glory.

<sup>5</sup> Put to death therefore your members which are on the earth: sexual immorality, uncleanness, depraved passion, evil desire, and covetousness, which is idolatry. <sup>6</sup> For these things' sake the wrath of God comes on the children of disobedience. <sup>7</sup> You also once walked in those, when you lived in them; <sup>8</sup> but now you also put them all away: anger, wrath, malice, slander, and shameful speaking out of your mouth. <sup>9</sup> Don't lie to one another, seeing that you have put off the old man with his doings, <sup>10</sup> and have put on the new man, who is being renewed in knowledge after the image of his Creator, <sup>11</sup> where there can't be Greek and Jew, circumcision and uncircumcision, barbarian, Scythian, bondservant, or free person; but Christ is all, and in all.

<sup>12</sup> Put on therefore, as God's chosen ones, holy and beloved, a heart of compassion, kindness, lowliness, humility, and perseverance; <sup>13</sup> bearing with one another, and forgiving each other, if any man has a complaint against any; even as Christ forgave you, so you also do.

<sup>14</sup> Above all these things, walk in love, which is the bond of perfection. <sup>15</sup> And let the peace of God rule in your hearts, to which also you were called in one body, and be thankful. <sup>16</sup> Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly; in all wisdom teaching and admonishing one another with psalms, hymns, and spiritual songs, singing with grace in your heart to the Lord.

<sup>17</sup> Whatever you do, in word or in deed, do all in the name of the Lord Jesus, giving thanks to God the Father, through him.

## I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare by God's CREATIVE WORD you are made in His IMAGE, in the likeness of the Father/Abba, Son and Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh. God has given you AUTHORITY to RULE over the fish in the sea, the birds in the air, the animals, and over all the EARTH, and over every crawling creature that crawls on the Earth!
- I decree and declare the first man, became a living human being, but the Last Adam has become a LIFE-GIVING SPIRIT/RUACH. The body from the Spirit/Ruach did not come first, but the ordinary Human one; the one from the Spirit/Ruach comes afterwards. The first man is from the Earth, made of dust; the second Man is from Heaven. People born of dust are like the man of dust, and People born from Heaven are like the Man from Heaven; and just as we have borne the image of the man of dust; so also we will bear the IMAGE of the Man from Heaven.
- I decree and declare flesh and blood cannot share in the Kingdom of God, nor can something that decays share in what does not decay. Not all of us will die! But we will all be CHANGED! It will take but a moment, the blink of an eye, at the FINAL SHOFAR! For the Shofar will SOUND, and the dead will be RAISED to LIVE FOREVER, and we too will be changed. For this material which can decay must be clothed with IMPERISHABILITY, this which is mortal must be clothed with IMMORTALITY.
- I decree and declare we who have turned to the Lord/Adonai have our faces unveiled, for where the Spirit of the Lord/Ruach Adonai is, there is FREEDOM. So all of us, with faces unveiled, see as in a mirror the GLORY of the Lord, and WE ARE BEING CHANGED into His very IMAGE, from one degree of Glory to the next, by the Lord the Spirit/Adonai Ruach!
- I decree and declare you who were raised with Christ/Messiah are SEEKING the things ABOVE, where Christ/Messiah is sitting at the right hand of God/Elohim. You are FOCUSING your minds on the things above, not on the things here on Earth.
- I decree and declare you have DIED, and your LIFE is HIDDEN with Christ/Messiah in God/Elohim. When Christ/Messiah, who is our Life, appears, they you too will APPEAR with Him in GLORY!

- I decree and declare you are putting to DEATH the earthly parts of your nature, for it is because of these that God's/Elohim's anger is coming on those who disobey Him. Because you have stripped away the old self, with its ways, and have put on the NEW SELF, which is CONTINUALLY BEING RENEWED in FULLER and FULLER KNOWLEDGE, CLOSER and CLOSER to the IMAGE of its Creator.
- I decree and declare the NEW SELF does not discriminate between Gentile and Jew, circumcised and uncircumcised, foreigner, savage, slave, free man; on the contrary, in all, Christ/Messiah is EVERYTHING!
- I decree and declare as God's/Elohim's CHOSEN PEOPLE, HOLY and DEARLY LOVED, clothe yourselves with feelings of COMPASSION and KINDNESS, humility, gentleness and patience. Bear with one another. Indeed, just as the Lord has forgiven you, so you must forgive.
- I decree and declare above all these qualities, CLOTHE YOURSELVES with LOVE, which binds everything together perfectly; and let the PEACE/SHALOM which comes from Christ/Messiah be your heart's decision-maker, for this is why you were called to be part of a single Body.
- I decree and declare you are THANKFUL! You are letting the Word of Christ/Messiah, in all its richness, LIVE IN YOU, as you teach and counsel each other in all WISDOM, and as you sing psalms, hymns and spiritual songs with GRATITUDE to God/Elohim in your hearts.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published Synergy of the Ages NW, February 24, 2019]

#### Prayers are Igniting Torches of Righteousness Throughout the Land!

James 2:8-13; Isaiah 60:1-5, 15-22; Romans 3:21-26 (WEB)

#### James 2:8-13

<sup>8</sup> However, if you fulfill the royal law according to the Scripture, "You shall love your neighbor as yourself,"Leviticus 19:18 you do well. <sup>9</sup> But if you show partiality, you commit sin, being convicted by the law as transgressors. <sup>10</sup> For whoever keeps the whole law, and yet stumbles in one point, he has become guilty of all. <sup>11</sup> For he who said, "Do not commit adultery," Exodus 20:14; Deuteronomy 5:18 also said, "Do not commit murder." Exodus 20:13; Deuteronomy 5:17 Now if you do not commit adultery, but murder, you have become a transgressor of the law. <sup>12</sup> So speak and so do, as men who are to be judged by a law of freedom. <sup>13</sup> For judgment is without mercy to him who has shown no mercy. Mercy triumphs over judgment.

#### Isaiah 60:1-5, 15-22

"Arise, shine; for your light has come, and Yahweh's glory has risen on you. <sup>2</sup> For, behold, darkness will cover the earth, and thick darkness the peoples; but Yahweh will arise on you, and his glory shall be seen on you. <sup>3</sup>Nations will come to your light, and kings to the brightness of your rising. <sup>4</sup> "Lift up your eyes all around, and see: they all gather themselves together. They come to you. Your sons will come from far away, and your daughters will be carried in arms. <sup>5</sup>Then you shall see and be radiant, and your heart will thrill and be enlarged; because the abundance of the sea will be turned to you. The wealth of the nations will come to you.

<sup>15</sup> "Whereas you have been forsaken and hated, so that no one passed through you, I will make you an eternal excellency, a joy of many generations. <sup>16</sup> You will also drink the milk of the nations, and will nurse from royal breasts. Then you will know that I, Yahweh, am your Savior, your Redeemer, the Mighty One of Jacob. <sup>17</sup> For bronze I will bring gold; for iron I will bring silver; for wood, bronze, and for stones, iron. I will also make peace your governor,

and righteousness your ruler.

<sup>18</sup> Violence shall no more be heard in your land, nor desolation or destruction within your borders; but you will call your walls Salvation,

and your gates Praise.

<sup>19</sup> The sun will be no more your light by day; nor will the brightness of the moon give light to you,

but Yahweh will be your everlasting light,

and your God will be your glory.

<sup>20</sup> Your sun will not go down any more, nor will your moon withdraw itself;

for Yahweh will be your everlasting light, and the days of your mourning will end.

<sup>21</sup> Then your people will all be righteous. They will inherit the land forever, the branch of my planting, the work of my hands, that I may be glorified.

<sup>22</sup> The little one will become a thousand, and the small one a strong nation.
I, Yahweh, will do this guickly in its time."

#### Romans 3:21-26

<sup>21</sup> But now apart from the law, a righteousness of God has been revealed, being testified by the law and the prophets; <sup>22</sup> even the righteousness of God through faith in Jesus Christ to all and on all those who believe. For there is no distinction, <sup>23</sup> for all have sinned, and fall short of the glory of God; <sup>24</sup> being justified freely by his grace through the redemption that is in Christ Jesus; <sup>25</sup> whom God sent to be an atoning sacrifice, through faith in his blood, for a demonstration of his righteousness through the passing over of prior sins, in God's forbearance; <sup>26</sup> to demonstrate his righteousness at this present time; that he might himself be just, and the justifier of him who has faith in Jesus.

## I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare as you live your life in CONFORMITY with the passage that says, "Love your neighbor as yourself," you are attaining the goal of KINGDOM LAW/TORAH! But if you show favoritism, your actions constitute sin. For a person who keeps the whole Law/Torah, yet stumbles at one point, has become guilty of breaking them all.
- I decree and declare I speak and act as one who will be JUDGED by the Law/Torah which gives FREEDOM. For JUDGMENT will be without MERCY toward one who doesn't show MERCY, but MERCY wins out over JUDGMENT.
- I decree and declare to each of our CITIES and NATIONS, "ARISE, SHINE, for your LIGHT has come, the GLORY of the Lord/Adonai has RISEN OVER YOU! For although darkness covers the Earth and thick darkness the Peoples, on you the Lord/Adonai will rise, over you will be seen HIS GLORY!

- I decree and declare Nations will go toward your LIGHT and Kings toward your SHINING SPLENDOR. Raise your Eyes and look around: they are all assembling and coming to you. Then you will see and be RADIANT, your heart will throb and swell with DELIGHT; for the RICHES of the seas will be brought to you, the WEALTH of Nations will come to you.
- I decree and declare by the PRAYERS of God's People, Cities and Nations are being TRANSFORMED! In the past these were abandoned and hated, so that no one would even pass through them; but NOW God Almighty/El Shaddai will make them the PRIDE of the Ages, a joy for many generations!
- I decree and declare the Cities and Regions that bear God's/Elohim's Name will drink the milk of Nations and KNOW that He, the Lord/Adonai, is their SAVIOR, REDEEMER, the Mighty One of Jacob/Ya'akov, Israel!
- I decree and declare by the Hand of God, violence will no longer be heard in your Land, desolation or destruction within your borders; instead the Cities and Countries will call the walls SALVATION and the gates PRAISE!
- I decree and declare God's /Elohim's Way of making People Righteous in His sight has been made CLEAR and it is a RIGHTEOUSNESS that comes from God/Elohim, through the FAITHFULNESS of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah, to all who continue TRUSTING. For it makes no difference whether one is a Jew or a Gentile, since all have sinned and come short of earning God's/Elohim's praise.
- I decree and declare it is by God's/Elohim's GRACE that all are granted the status of being considered RIGHTEOUS before Him, through the act REDEEMING us from our enslavement to sin that was accomplished by Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.
- I decree and declare God put Jesus/Yeshua forward as the propitiation for sin through His FAITHFULNESS in respect to His bloody sacrificial death. This VINDICATED God's RIGHTEOUSNESS; because He had PASSED OVER the sins People had committed in the past; and it vindicates His RIGHTEOUSNESS in the Present Age by showing that He is RIGHTEOUS Himself and is also the One Who makes People RIGHTEOUS on the ground of Jesus'/Yeshua's FAITHFULNESS!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

#### Inspired by:

Alexander, Anita. <u>"Freedom Runners, New York, Harvest and Justice."</u> Facebook post, February 12<sup>th</sup>, 2019, 6:43 PM, PST.

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 16, 2019]

#### God is on the Throne Removing the Wicked from the Righteous!

Psalm 32:1-7; Ezekiel 28:1-8; Proverbs 16:16-19; Nahum 1:15-2:2, 9-10, 13 (WEB)

#### Psalm 32:1-7

Blessed is he whose disobedience is forgiven,

whose sin is covered.

<sup>2</sup> Blessed is the man to whom Yahweh doesn't impute iniquity,

in whose spirit there is no deceit.

<sup>3</sup>When I kept silence, my bones wasted away through my groaning all day long.

<sup>4</sup> For day and night your hand was heavy on me.

My strength was sapped in the heat of summer. Selah.

<sup>5</sup>I acknowledged my sin to you.

I didn't hide my iniquity.

I said, I will confess my transgressions to Yahweh,

and you forgave the iniquity of my sin. Selah.

<sup>6</sup> For this, let everyone who is godly pray to you in a time when you may be found.

Surely when the great waters overflow, they shall not reach to him.

<sup>7</sup>You are my hiding place.

You will preserve me from trouble.

You will surround me with songs of deliverance. Selah.

#### Ezekiel 28:1-8

Yahweh's word came again to me, saying, <sup>2</sup> "Son of man, tell the prince of Tyre, 'The Lord Yahweh says: "Because your heart is lifted up,

and you have said, 'I am a god,

I sit in the seat of God,

in the middle of the seas;'

yet you are man,

and not God,

though you set your heart as the heart of God-

<sup>3</sup> behold, you are wiser than Daniel;

there is no secret that is hidden from you;

<sup>4</sup> by your wisdom and by your understanding you have gotten yourself riches,

and have gotten gold and silver into your treasuries;

<sup>5</sup> by your great wisdom

and by your trading you have increased your riches,

and your heart is lifted up because of your riches—"

<sup>6</sup> "'therefore the Lord Yahweh says:

"Because you have set your heart as the heart of God,

<sup>7</sup> therefore, behold, I will bring strangers on you, the terrible of the nations.

They will draw their swords against the beauty of your wisdom.

They will defile your brightness.

<sup>8</sup>They will bring you down to the pit.

You will die the death of those who are slain in the heart of the seas.

#### Proverbs 16:16-19

- <sup>16</sup> How much better it is to get wisdom than gold! Yes, to get understanding is to be chosen rather than silver.
- <sup>17</sup> The highway of the upright is to depart from evil.
- He who keeps his way preserves his soul.
- <sup>18</sup> Pride goes before destruction,
  - and an arrogant spirit before a fall.
- <sup>19</sup> It is better to be of a lowly spirit with the poor, than to divide the plunder with the proud.

#### Nahum 1:15-2:2, 9-10, 13

<sup>5</sup> Behold, on the mountains the feet of him who brings good news, who publishes peace! Keep your feasts, Judah! Perform your vows, for the wicked one will no more pass through you. He is utterly cut off.

<sup>1</sup> He who dashes in pieces has come up against you. Keep the fortress! Watch the way! Strengthen your waist! Fortify your power mightily! <sup>2</sup> For Yahweh restores the excellency of Jacob, as the excellency of Israel; for the destroyers have destroyed them, and ruined their vine branches.

<sup>9</sup> Take the plunder of silver. Take the plunder of gold, for there is no end of the store, the glory of all goodly furniture. <sup>10</sup> She is empty, void, and waste. The heart melts, the knees knock together, their bodies and faces have grown pale.

<sup>13</sup> "Behold, I am against you," says Yahweh of Armies, "and I will burn her chariots in the smoke, and the sword will devour your young lions; and I will cut off your prey from the earth, and the voice of your messengers will no longer be heard."

## I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare BLESSED are you whose OFFENSE is FORGIVEN, you whose SIN is COVERED! You are blessed because the Lord/Adonai does not impute guilt unto you; you have no deceit in your spirit.
- I decree and declare those who KEEP SILENT and do not come before the Lord in REPENTANCE will WASTE AWAY. The Hand of God is HEAVY upon those whose LIFE is FULL of SIN; who are set on SINFUL LIVING.
- I decree and declare You, Lord/Adonai FORGIVE my GUILT when I ACKNOWLEDGED my SIN to You, when I STOPPED CONCEALING my GUILT, and said, "I will CONFESS my OFFENSES to the Lord/Adonai."
- I declare EVERYONE who is FAITHFUL should PRAY NOW when God/Elohim can be FOUND; or else, when the FLOODWATERS are RAGING, they will not reach to Him. The Lord God

Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai is a HIDING-PLACE for me, He KEEPS me from distress; He SURROUNDS me with SONGS of DELIVERANCE.

- I decree and declare to those who are PROUD and are "a god" sitting on the Throne of God/Elohim; KNOW that you are but a man, not God/Elohim, even though you think that you think like Him. Yes, you are wiser than Daniel; no SECRET can be hidden from you! By your wisdom and discernment, you have acquired wealth, you have gathered gold and silver into your treasuries.
- I decree and declare it is by your great skill in trading that you have increased your wealth, and it is because of your wealth that you have BECOME so PROUD. Therefore, the Lord God/Adonai Elohim says, "Because you think that you think like god, I will bring FOREIGNERS against you, the most barbarous of the Nations, to draw their swords against your fine wisdom and DEFILE your SPLENDOR.
- I decree and declare you will be lowered into the PIT to DIE a violent death surrounded by the Sea. Then will you still say, "I am God," to them who are about to kill you? You are a man, you are not God, in the hands of those who defile you.
- I decree and declare it is much BETTER to gain WISDOM than gold; YES, rather than money, CHOOSE TO GAIN understanding! The Upright AVOID EVIL; he who watches his STEP PRESERVES his Life.
- I decree and declare PRIDE goes before DESTRUCTION, and arrogance before failure. It is better to be HUMBLE among the Poor than share the spoil with the Proud.
- I decree and declare the wicked in the Land are being called out. People, WORSHIP the Lord your God/ Adonai Eloheinu and keep His Holy Feasts. BLESSED are the feet of him who brings GOOD NEWS, proclaiming PEACE/SHALOM. Rejoice for the evil one will not pass through you again; he has been completely DESTROYED.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is RESTORING the PRIDE of His People, because plunderers have plundered you and ravaged your vines. Now you will plunder the Silver and the Gold. There is NO END to the TREASURE! The Lord is RESTORING your pride and your wealth!
- I decree and declare that those who have taken from the RIGHTEOUS will find themselves void, vacant and bare. Their hearts will melt and knees will knock; their stomachs are churning and their faces drained of color. For the Lord of Hosts/Adonai-Tzva'ot sends for destruction over their forces; their strength will be NO MORE.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of

our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 23, 2019]



#### **Consecrate Yourselves – The Scroll Will Soon Be Opened!**

Nehemiah 9: 1-6; Revelation 10:4-11; Deuteronomy 32:39-43; Daniel 12:5-11; Psalm 146:1-6 (WEB)

#### Nehemiah 9: 1-6

Now in the twenty-fourth day of this month the children of Israel were assembled with fasting, with sackcloth, and dirt on them. <sup>2</sup> The offspring of Israel separated themselves from all foreigners and stood and confessed their sins and the iniquities of their fathers. <sup>3</sup> They stood up in their place, and read in the book of the law of Yahweh their God a fourth part of the day; and a fourth part they confessed, and worshiped Yahweh their God. <sup>4</sup> Then Jeshua, Bani, Kadmiel, Shebaniah, Bunni, Sherebiah, Bani, and Chenani of the Levites stood up on the stairs, and cried with a loud voice to Yahweh their God.

<sup>5</sup>Then the Levites, Jeshua, and Kadmiel, Bani, Hashabneiah, Sherebiah, Hodiah, Shebaniah, and Pethahiah, said, "Stand up and bless Yahweh your God from everlasting to everlasting! Blessed be your glorious name, which is exalted above all blessing and praise! <sup>6</sup>You are Yahweh, even you alone. You have made heaven, the heaven of heavens, with all their army, the earth and all things that are on it, the seas and all that is in them, and you preserve them all. The army of heaven worships you.

#### Revelation 10:4-11

<sup>4</sup>When the seven thunders sounded, I was about to write; but I heard a voice from the sky saying, "Seal up the things which the seven thunders said, and don't write them."

<sup>5</sup>The angel whom I saw standing on the sea and on the land lifted up his right hand to the sky, <sup>6</sup> and swore by him who lives forever and ever, who created heaven and the things that are in it, the earth and the things that are in it, and the sea and the things that are in it, that there will no longer be delay, <sup>7</sup> but in the days of the voice of the seventh angel, when he is about to sound, then the mystery of God is finished, as he declared to his servants, the prophets. <sup>8</sup>The voice which I heard from heaven, again speaking with me, said, "Go, take the book which is open in the hand of the angel who stands on the sea and on the land."

<sup>9</sup>I went to the angel, telling him to give me the little book.

He said to me, "Take it, and eat it. It will make your stomach bitter, but in your mouth it will be as sweet as honey."

<sup>10</sup> I took the little book out of the angel's hand, and ate it. It was as sweet as honey in my mouth. When I had eaten it, my stomach was made bitter. <sup>11</sup> They told me, "You must prophesy again over many peoples, nations, languages, and kings."

#### Deuteronomy 32:39-43

<sup>39</sup> "See now that I myself am he.

There is no god with me.

I kill and I make alive.

I wound and I heal.

There is no one who can deliver out of my hand.

<sup>40</sup> For I lift up my hand to heaven and declare,

as I live forever,

<sup>41</sup> if I sharpen my glittering sword, my hand grasps it in judgment; I will take vengeance on my adversaries,

and will repay those who hate me.

<sup>42</sup> I will make my arrows drunk with blood.
 My sword shall devour flesh with the blood of the slain and the captives, from the head of the leaders of the enemy."

<sup>43</sup> Rejoice, you nations, with his people, for he will avenge the blood of his servants. He will take vengeance on his adversaries, and will make atonement for his land and for his people.

#### Daniel 12:5-11

<sup>5</sup>Then I, Daniel, looked, and behold, two others stood, one on the river bank on this side, and the other on the river bank on that side. <sup>6</sup>One said to the man clothed in linen, who was above the waters of the river, "How long will it be to the end of these wonders?"

<sup>7</sup>I heard the man clothed in linen, who was above the waters of the river, when he held up his right hand and his left hand to heaven, and swore by him who lives forever that it will be for a time, times, and a half; and when they have finished breaking in pieces the power of the holy people, all these things will be finished.

<sup>8</sup>I heard, but I didn't understand. Then I said, "My lord, what will be the outcome of these things?"

<sup>9</sup> He said, "Go your way, Daniel; for the words are shut up and sealed until the time of the end. <sup>10</sup> Many will purify themselves, and make themselves white, and be refined; but the wicked will do wickedly; and none of the wicked will understand; but those who are wise will understand.

<sup>11</sup> "From the time that the continual burnt offering is taken away, and the abomination that makes desolate set up, there will be one thousand two hundred ninety days.

#### Psalm 146:1-6

Praise Yah!
Praise Yahweh, my soul.
<sup>2</sup> While I live, I will praise Yahweh.
I will sing praises to my God as long as I exist.
<sup>3</sup> Don't put your trust in princes, in a son of man in whom there is no help.
<sup>4</sup> His spirit departs, and he returns to the earth. In that very day, his thoughts perish.
<sup>5</sup> Happy is he who has the God of Jacob for his help, whose hope is in Yahweh, his God:
<sup>6</sup> who made heaven and earth,

the sea, and all that is in them; who keeps truth forever;

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- I decree and declare it is time for the People of God to assemble for a FAST. SEPARATE yourselves from those of the World, CONFESS your own sins and the iniquities of your ancestors. DWELL in His Presence and STUDY His Scriptures. This is a time of CONSECRATION for the Days of the End are drawing near when Judgment will come upon the Earth.
- I decree and declare we cry out loudly to the Lord our God/Adonai Eloheinu; we BLESS Him from EVERLASTING to EVERLASTING! Blessed be the Name of the Lord/Adonai! You, Lord/Adonai made Heaven, the Heaven of Heavens, with all their array, the Earth and all the things that are in it, the Seas and all that is in them; and You PRESERVE them all. The Army of Heaven WORSHIPS You!
- I decree and declare the time of GRACE will soon be complete! The ANGEL will stand on the Sea and on the Land lifting his RIGHT HAND toward Heaven, swearing by the One Who LIVES FOREVER and EVER, Who created Heaven and what is in it, Earth and what is in it, and the Sea and what is in it.
- I decree and declare in the Days of the SOUND from the Seventh Angel when he SOUNDS his SHOFAR, the HIDDEN PLAN of God will be brought to COMPLETION, the Good News as He proclaimed it to His Servants the Prophets!
- I decree and declare You, Lord God/Adonai Elohim, are God/Elohim, there is no god beside You! You put to death and You make ALIVE; You wound, and You HEAL; NO ONE SAVES ANYONE FROM YOUR HAND!
- I decree and declare You, God Almighty/ El Shaddai, are ALIVE FOREVER! If You sharpen Your FLASHING SWORD and set Your Hand to JUDGMENT, You will render VENGEANCE to Your foes, REPAY those who hate You.
- I decree and declare the Nations will SING out about the People of God! For He will AVENGE the blood of His Servants. He will render VENGEANCE to His adversaries and make ATONEMENT for the Land of His People!
- I decree and declare the Words spoken to the Prophets have remained a SECRET and SEALED until the SOON COMING TIME of the END. Many will PURIFY, CLEANSE and REFINE themselves; but the wicked will keep on acting wickedly, and none of the wicked will UNDERSTAND. But those with DISCERNMENT will UNDERSTAND.
- I decree and declare HALLELUYAH! My soul PRAISES the Lord/Adonai; I will PRAISE Him as long as I live. I will SING PRAISE to my God all my life!
- I decree and declare you do not place your TRUST in Princes or mortals, who cannot help. When they breathe their last, they return to dust; on that very day all their plans are gone. HAPPY are you whose HELP is the God of Israel, whose HOPE is in the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu. He made Heaven and Earth, the Sea and everything in them; He keeps FAITH FOREVER!

I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 15, 2019]

#### **Consecrate Yourselves – the Shofar is Sounding!**

Exodus 19:7-25; Joshua 6:1-5, 15-25; Isaiah 18:3-7 (WEB)

#### Exodus 19:7-25

<sup>7</sup> Moses came and called for the elders of the people, and set before them all these words which Yahweh commanded him. <sup>8</sup> All the people answered together, and said, "All that Yahweh has spoken we will do."

Moses reported the words of the people to Yahweh. <sup>9</sup>Yahweh said to Moses, "Behold, I come to you in a thick cloud, that the people may hear when I speak with you, and may also believe you forever." Moses told the words of the people to Yahweh. <sup>10</sup>Yahweh said to Moses, "Go to the people, and sanctify them today and tomorrow, and let them wash their garments, <sup>11</sup> and be ready for the third day; for on the third day Yahweh will come down in the sight of all the people on Mount Sinai. <sup>12</sup>You shall set bounds to the people all around, saying, 'Be careful that you don't go up onto the mountain, or touch its border. Whoever touches the mountain shall be surely put to death. <sup>13</sup>No hand shall touch him, but he shall surely be stoned or shot through; whether it is animal or man, he shall not live.' When the trumpet sounds long, they shall come up to the mountain."

<sup>14</sup> Moses went down from the mountain to the people, and sanctified the people; and they washed their clothes. <sup>15</sup> He said to the people, "Be ready by the third day. Don't have sexual relations with a woman."

<sup>16</sup> On the third day, when it was morning, there were thunders and lightnings, and a thick cloud on the mountain, and the sound of an exceedingly loud trumpet; and all the people who were in the camp trembled. <sup>17</sup> Moses led the people out of the camp to meet God; and they stood at the lower part of the mountain. <sup>18</sup> All of Mount Sinai smoked, because Yahweh descended on it in fire; and its smoke ascended like the smoke of a furnace, and the whole mountain quaked greatly. <sup>19</sup> When the sound of the trumpet grew louder and louder, Moses spoke, and God answered him by a voice. <sup>20</sup> Yahweh came down on Mount Sinai, to the top of the mountain. Yahweh called Moses to the top of the mountain, and Moses went up.

<sup>21</sup> Yahweh said to Moses, "Go down, warn the people, lest they break through to Yahweh to gaze, and many of them perish. <sup>22</sup> Let the priests also, who come near to Yahweh, sanctify themselves, lest Yahweh break out on them."

<sup>23</sup> Moses said to Yahweh, "The people can't come up to Mount Sinai, for you warned us, saying, 'Set bounds around the mountain, and sanctify it."

<sup>24</sup> Yahweh said to him, "Go down! You shall bring Aaron up with you, but don't let the priests and the people break through to come up to Yahweh, lest he break out against them."

<sup>25</sup> So Moses went down to the people, and told them.

#### Joshua 6:1-5, 15-25

Now Jericho was tightly shut up because of the children of Israel. No one went out, and no one came in. <sup>2</sup>Yahweh said to Joshua, "Behold, I have given Jericho into your hand, with its king and the mighty men of valor. <sup>3</sup>All of your men of war shall march around the city, going around the city once. You shall do this six days. <sup>4</sup>Seven priests shall bear seven trumpets of rams' horns before the ark. On the seventh day, you shall march around the city seven times, and the priests shall blow the trumpets. <sup>5</sup>It shall be that when they make a long blast with the ram's horn, and when you hear the sound of the trumpet, all

the people shall shout with a great shout; then the city wall will fall down flat, and the people shall go up, every man straight in front of him."

<sup>15</sup> On the seventh day, they rose early at the dawning of the day, and marched around the city in the same way seven times. On this day only they marched around the city seven times. <sup>16</sup> At the seventh time, when the priests blew the trumpets, Joshua said to the people, "Shout, for Yahweh has given you the city! <sup>17</sup> The city shall be devoted, even it and all that is in it, to Yahweh. Only Rahab the prostitute shall live, she and all who are with her in the house, because she hid the messengers that we sent. <sup>18</sup> But as for you, only keep yourselves from what is devoted to destruction, lest when you have devoted it, you take of the devoted thing; so you would make the camp of Israel accursed and trouble it. <sup>19</sup> But all the silver, gold, and vessels of bronze and iron are holy to Yahweh. They shall come into Yahweh's treasury."

<sup>20</sup> So the people shouted and the priests blew the trumpets. When the people heard the sound of the trumpet, the people shouted with a great shout, and the wall fell down flat, so that the people went up into the city, every man straight in front of him, and they took the city. <sup>21</sup> They utterly destroyed all that was in the city, both man and woman, both young and old, and ox, sheep, and donkey, with the edge of the sword. <sup>22</sup> Joshua said to the two men who had spied out the land, "Go into the prostitute's house, and bring the woman and all that she has out from there, as you swore to her." <sup>23</sup> The young men who were spies went in, and brought out Rahab with her father, her mother, her brothers, and all that she had. They also brought out all of her relatives, and they set them outside of the camp of Israel. <sup>24</sup> They burned the city with fire, and all that was in it. Only they put the silver, the gold, and the vessels of bronze and of iron into the treasury of Yahweh's house. <sup>25</sup> But Rahab the prostitute, her father's household, and all that she had, Joshua saved alive. She lives in the middle of Israel to this day, because she hid the messengers whom Joshua sent to spy out Jericho.

#### Isaiah 18:3-7

<sup>3</sup> All you inhabitants of the world, and you dwellers on the earth, when a banner is lifted up on the mountains, look! When the trumpet is blown, listen!

<sup>4</sup> For Yahweh said to me, "I will be still, and I will see in my dwelling place, like clear heat in sunshine, like a cloud of dew in the heat of harvest." <sup>5</sup> For before the harvest, when the blossom is over, and the flower becomes a ripening grape, he will cut off the sprigs with pruning hooks, and he will cut down and take away the spreading branches. <sup>6</sup> They will be left together for the ravenous birds of the mountains, and for the animals of the earth. The ravenous birds will eat them in the summer, and all the animals of the earth will eat them in the winter. <sup>7</sup> In that time, a present will be brought to Yahweh of Armies from a people tall and smooth, even from a people awesome from their beginning onward, a nation that measures out and treads down, whose land the rivers divide, to the place of the name of Yahweh of Armies, Mount Zion.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

I decree and declare you, as the Believers of God Most High/El'Elyon, are in AGREEMENT to do ALL that He has ordered you to do! Through SALVATION in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, His Spirit indwells you. You are the TEMPLE of the Lord/Adonai and KNOW HIS LEADING!

- I decree and declare you CONSECRATE yourselves; CLEANSE yourselves inwardly and outwardly. You are PREPARING for the MEETING of the Lord/Adonai! You are SEPARATE and HOLY for He is HOLY.
- I decree and declare the SHOFAR of the Lord/Adonai will SOUND so LOUDLY that the People will TREMBLE. Those who do not KNOW Him will come FACE to FACE with the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai. His presence will be FIRE and SMOKE and the Earth will SHAKE VIOLENTLY. The sound of the SHOFAR will grow louder and louder; no one will be able to AVOID His Presence!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai has handed the Land over to you, His People! Though their barricades appear strong and impenetrable, with God you will CONQUER the enemy. Do not think of what is practical or logical in the human sense, RELY only on the LEADING of Holy Spirit.
- I decree and declare you will be CAREFUL to PROCEED as the Lord/Adonai DIRECTS. He SEES ALL, and He KNOWS the OUTCOME. As the SHOFARS are blown, and the People SHOUT the VICTORY is SURE as foretold by the Lord.
- I decree and declare you will not grow weary in FOLLOWING the Lord's/Adonai's DIRECTIVES. You will maintain your FOCUS on Him and Him alone. The RESULT is the Lord's/Adonai's, and to HIM BE THE GLORY!
- I decree and declare you will not take any spoils except those ALLOWED by God! He will DISTINGUISH between those that must be DESTROYED and those that may be KEPT. Do not go against His ORDERS for by doing so you would bring a curse on yourself and the community.
- I decree and declare it is by the Hand of God that the enemy's walls will TOPPLE. He is the Creator of the Universe; NOTHING is TOO DIFFICULT for Him!
- I decree and declare to the Inhabitants of the World, when a BANNER is hoisted on the Mountains, LOOK! When the SHOFAR is blown, LISTEN! For the Lord/Adonai has said, "I will LOOK ON from My Place and do nothing, like HEAT shimmering in the Sun, like a Cloud of dew in the heat of HARVEST!
- I decree and declare for before the HARVEST, when the Flowering is over, and the bud becomes a RIPENING GRAPE, He will cut off the Branches with pruning knives, lop off the twigs and TAKE THEM AWAY. At that TIME TRIBUTE will be brought to the Lord of Hosts/Adonai-Tzva'ot!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of

our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 13, 2019]

#### God has Called You Out as His Kingdom Comes to Earth!

Esther 4:10-17; 1 Samuel 16:3-13; Judges 6:11-24; Ruth 1:16; 2:1-12; 4:9-17 (WEB)

#### Esther 4:10-17

<sup>10</sup> Then Esther spoke to Hathach, and gave him a message to Mordecai: <sup>11</sup> "All the king's servants and the people of the king's provinces know that whoever, whether man or woman, comes to the king into the inner court without being called, there is one law for him, that he be put to death, except those to whom the king might hold out the golden scepter, that he may live. I have not been called to come in to the king these thirty days."

<sup>12</sup> They told Esther's words to Mordecai. <sup>13</sup> Then Mordecai asked them to return this answer to Esther: "Don't think to yourself that you will escape in the king's house any more than all the Jews. <sup>14</sup> For if you remain silent now, then relief and deliverance will come to the Jews from another place, but you and your father's house will perish. Who knows if you haven't come to the kingdom for such a time as this?"

<sup>15</sup> Then Esther asked them to answer Mordecai, <sup>16</sup> "Go, gather together all the Jews who are present in Susa, and fast for me, and neither eat nor drink three days, night or day. I and my maidens will also fast the same way. Then I will go in to the king, which is against the law; and if I perish, I perish." <sup>17</sup> So Mordecai went his way, and did according to all that Esther had commanded him.

#### 1 Samuel 16:3-13

<sup>3</sup> Call Jesse to the sacrifice, and I will show you what you shall do. You shall anoint to me him whom I name to you."

<sup>4</sup> Samuel did that which Yahweh spoke, and came to Bethlehem. The elders of the city came to meet him trembling, and said, "Do you come peaceably?"

<sup>5</sup> He said, "Peaceably; I have come to sacrifice to Yahweh. Sanctify yourselves, and come with me to the sacrifice." He sanctified Jesse and his sons, and called them to the sacrifice. <sup>6</sup> When they had come, he looked at Eliab, and said, "Surely Yahweh's anointed is before him."

<sup>7</sup> But Yahweh said to Samuel, "Don't look on his face, or on the height of his stature, because I have rejected him; for I don't see as man sees. For man looks at the outward appearance, but Yahweh looks at the heart."

<sup>8</sup> Then Jesse called Abinadab, and made him pass before Samuel. He said, "Yahweh has not chosen this one, either." <sup>9</sup> Then Jesse made Shammah to pass by. He said, "Yahweh has not chosen this one, either." <sup>10</sup> Jesse made seven of his sons to pass before Samuel. Samuel said to Jesse, "Yahweh has not chosen these." <sup>11</sup> Samuel said to Jesse, "Are all your children here?"

He said, "There remains yet the youngest. Behold, he is keeping the sheep."

Samuel said to Jesse, "Send and get him, for we will not sit down until he comes here."

<sup>12</sup> He sent, and brought him in. Now he was ruddy, with a handsome face and good appearance. Yahweh said, "Arise! Anoint him, for this is he."

<sup>13</sup> Then Samuel took the horn of oil and anointed him in the middle of his brothers. Then Yahweh's Spirit came mightily on David from that day forward. So Samuel rose up and went to Ramah.

#### Judges 6:11-24

<sup>11</sup>Yahweh's angel came and sat under the oak which was in Ophrah, that belonged to Joash the Abiezrite. His son Gideon was beating out wheat in the wine press, to hide it from the Midianites. <sup>12</sup>Yahweh's angel appeared to him, and said to him, "Yahweh is with you, you mighty man of valor!"

<sup>13</sup> Gideon said to him, "Oh, my lord, if Yahweh is with us, why then has all this happened to us? Where are all his wondrous works which our fathers told us of, saying, 'Didn't Yahweh bring us up from Egypt?' But now Yahweh has cast us off, and delivered us into the hand of Midian."

<sup>14</sup> Yahweh looked at him, and said, "Go in this your might, and save Israel from the hand of Midian. Haven't I sent you?"

<sup>15</sup> He said to him, "O Lord, how shall I save Israel? Behold, my family is the poorest in Manasseh, and I am the least in my father's house."

<sup>16</sup> Yahweh said to him, "Surely I will be with you, and you shall strike the Midianites as one man."

<sup>17</sup> He said to him, "If now I have found favor in your sight, then show me a sign that it is you who talk with me. <sup>18</sup> Please don't go away until I come to you, and bring out my present, and lay it before you."

He said, "I will wait until you come back."

<sup>19</sup> Gideon went in and prepared a young goat and unleavened cakes of an ephah of meal. He put the meat in a basket and he put the broth in a pot, and brought it out to him under the oak, and presented it.

<sup>20</sup> The angel of God said to him, "Take the meat and the unleavened cakes, and lay them on this rock, and pour out the broth."

He did so. <sup>21</sup> Then Yahweh's angel stretched out the end of the staff that was in his hand, and touched the meat and the unleavened cakes; and fire went up out of the rock and consumed the meat and the unleavened cakes. Then Yahweh's angel departed out of his sight.

<sup>22</sup> Gideon saw that he was Yahweh's angel; and Gideon said, "Alas, Lord Yahweh! Because I have seen Yahweh's angel face to face!"

<sup>23</sup> Yahweh said to him, "Peace be to you! Don't be afraid. You shall not die."

<sup>24</sup> Then Gideon built an altar there to Yahweh, and called it "Yahweh is Peace." To this day it is still in Ophrah of the Abiezrites.

#### Ruth 1:16; 2:1-12; 4:9-17

<sup>16</sup> Ruth said, "Don't urge me to leave you, and to return from following you, for where you go, I will go; and where you stay, I will stay. Your people will be my people, and your God my God.

...

Naomi had a relative of her husband's, a mighty man of wealth, of the family of Elimelech, and his name was Boaz. <sup>2</sup> Ruth the Moabitess said to Naomi, "Let me now go to the field, and glean among the ears of grain after him in whose sight I find favor."

She said to her, "Go, my daughter." <sup>3</sup> She went, and came and gleaned in the field after the reapers; and she happened to come to the portion of the field belonging to Boaz, who was of the family of Elimelech.

<sup>4</sup> Behold, Boaz came from Bethlehem, and said to the reapers, "May Yahweh be with you." They answered him, "May Yahweh bless you."

<sup>5</sup>Then Boaz said to his servant who was set over the reapers, "Whose young lady is this?"

<sup>6</sup>The servant who was set over the reapers answered, "It is the Moabite lady who came back with Naomi out of the country of Moab. <sup>7</sup>She said, 'Please let me glean and gather after the reapers among the sheaves.' So she came, and has continued even from the morning until now, except that she rested a little in the house."

<sup>8</sup>Then Boaz said to Ruth, "Listen, my daughter. Don't go to glean in another field, and don't go from here, but stay here close to my maidens. <sup>9</sup>Let your eyes be on the field that they reap, and go after them. Haven't I commanded the young men not to touch you? When you are thirsty, go to the vessels, and drink from that which the young men have drawn."

<sup>10</sup> Then she fell on her face and bowed herself to the ground, and said to him, "Why have I found favor in your sight, that you should take knowledge of me, since I am a foreigner?"

<sup>11</sup> Boaz answered her, "I have been told all about what you have done for your mother-in-law since the death of your husband, and how you have left your father, your mother, and the land of your birth, and have come to a people that you didn't know before. <sup>12</sup> May Yahweh repay your work, and a full reward be given to you from Yahweh, the God of Israel, under whose wings you have come to take refuge."

<sup>9</sup> Boaz said to the elders and to all the people, "You are witnesses today, that I have bought all that was Elimelech's, and all that was Chilion's and Mahlon's, from the hand of Naomi. <sup>10</sup> Moreover, Ruth the Moabitess, the wife of Mahlon, I have purchased to be my wife, to raise up the name of the dead on his inheritance, that the name of the dead may not be cut off from among his brothers and from the gate of his place. You are witnesses today."

<sup>11</sup> All the people who were in the gate, and the elders, said, "We are witnesses. May Yahweh make the woman who has come into your house like Rachel and like Leah, which both built the house of Israel; and treat you worthily in Ephrathah, and be famous in Bethlehem. <sup>12</sup> Let your house be like the house of Perez, whom Tamar bore to Judah, of the offspring which Yahweh will give you by this young woman."

<sup>13</sup> So Boaz took Ruth and she became his wife; and he went in to her, and Yahweh enabled her to conceive, and she bore a son. <sup>14</sup> The women said to Naomi, "Blessed be Yahweh, who has not left you today without a near kinsman. Let his name be famous in Israel. <sup>15</sup> He shall be to you a restorer of life and sustain you in your old age; for your daughter-in-law, who loves you, who is better to you than seven sons, has given birth to him." <sup>16</sup> Naomi took the child, laid him in her bosom, and became nurse to him. <sup>17</sup> The women, her neighbors, gave him a name, saying, "A son is born to Naomi". They named him Obed. He is the father of Jesse, the father of David.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is giving you a HOLY BOLDNESS so that you will approach Kings to INTERCEDE for God's People. He will give you the STRATEGY and the Words to speak. He will go before you and will show you the WAY!

- I decree and declare you have been placed in your POSITION: EMPLOYMENT, NEIGHBORHOOD, REGION, to MAKE a WAY FOR GOD'S People to SURVIVE and His Will to FLOURISH! Do not take the CALLING lightly. Who knows whether or not you came into your this place PRECISELY for SUCH a TIME AS THIS!
- I decree and declare to those who are SERIOUSLY in LOVE with Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah, CONSECRATE YOURSELVES and come before the THRONE of God with REPENTANCE and THANKSGIVING! God does not look on the outward appearance the way humans do, but He LOOKS at the HEART!
- I decree and declare you will have PERSEVERANCE as those in the World go through their systematic processes to choose the individual they deem most qualified; for in the END it will be the CHOSEN of God Most High/El'Elyon who will RISE to AUTHORITY!
- I decree and declare you are VALIANT in the EYES of the Lord/Adonai; He is with you to give you STRENGTH in all that He has CALLED you to do. That which you SEE before you, the PROBLEMS and CHALLENGES in the Land, may be what He is DIRECTING you to correct. Do not doubt the DIRECTION of the Lord/Adonai.
- I decree and declare you are growing in FAITH as you HEAR God's VOICE and are OBEDIENT to His Commands. Your Father LOVES you and will NURTURE you as you STEP OUT TRUSTING in His PROMISES.
- I decree and declare your DETERMINATION to follow the Lord/Adonai will be an evident SIGN of your CALLING. You are DILIGENT to pursue your daily sustenance, in doing so you will be LEAD in the WAY of the Lord/Adonai.
- I decree and declare in all you do, you do it UNTO your Father/Abba in Heaven, in this way others will SEE your MOTIVES and HEART, and will come to KNOW the Lord/Adonai through you. People will come to know your LIFE story and RESPECT you and the God/Elohim you serve.
- I decree and declare the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai is ALIGNING events to move you into the position ORDAINED for you. Trust in Him and KEEP your SIGHTS focused on His Perfect will. He will PROVIDE for you and LEAD you in His Way.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

## Protection

## I Am at Peace for I Am Surrounded by a Wall of Fire!

Zechariah 2:3-5; 2 Kings 19:34-37; Psalm 35:1-8; 91:1-16; 103:17-22 (WEB)

## Zechariah 2:5

<sup>5</sup> For I,' says Yahweh, 'will be to her a wall of fire around it, and I will be the glory in the middle of her.

## Psalm 91:1-16

He who dwells in the secret place of the Most High will rest in the shadow of the Almighty.

- <sup>2</sup> I will say of Yahweh, "He is my refuge and my fortress; my God, in whom I trust."
- <sup>3</sup> For he will deliver you from the snare of the fowler, and from the deadly pestilence.
- <sup>4</sup> He will cover you with his feathers. Under his wings you will take refuge. His faithfulness is your shield and rampart.
- <sup>5</sup> You shall not be afraid of the terror by night, nor of the arrow that flies by day,
- <sup>6</sup> nor of the pestilence that walks in darkness, nor of the destruction that wastes at noonday.
- <sup>7</sup> A thousand may fall at your side, and ten thousand at your right hand; but it will not come near you.
- <sup>8</sup>You will only look with your eyes,
- and see the recompense of the wicked.
- <sup>9</sup>Because you have made Yahweh your refuge,
- and the Most High your dwelling place,
- <sup>10</sup> no evil shall happen to you,
  - neither shall any plague come near your dwelling.
- <sup>11</sup> For he will put his angels in charge of you,
- to guard you in all your ways.
- <sup>12</sup> They will bear you up in their hands,
- so that you won't dash your foot against a stone.
- <sup>13</sup> You will tread on the lion and cobra.

You will trample the young lion and the serpent underfoot.

- <sup>14</sup> "Because he has set his love on me, therefore I will deliver him.
- I will set him on high, because he has known my name.
- <sup>15</sup> He will call on me, and I will answer him.
  - I will be with him in trouble.
  - I will deliver him, and honor him.
- <sup>16</sup>I will satisfy him with long life,
  - and show him my salvation."

## 2 Kings 19:34-37

<sup>34</sup> 'For I will defend this city to save it, for my own sake, and for my servant David's sake.'"

<sup>35</sup> That night, Yahweh's angel went out, and struck one hundred eighty-five thousand in the camp of the Assyrians. When men arose early in the morning, behold, these were all dead bodies. <sup>36</sup> So Sennacherib king of Assyria departed, and went and returned, and lived at Nineveh. <sup>37</sup> As he was worshiping in the house of Nisroch his god, Adrammelech and Sharezer struck him with the sword; and they escaped into the land of Ararat. Esar Haddon his son reigned in his place.

## Psalm 35:1-8

Contend, Yahweh, with those who contend with me.

- Fight against those who fight against me.
- <sup>2</sup> Take hold of shield and buckler,
  - and stand up for my help.
- <sup>3</sup> Brandish the spear and block those who pursue me.
- Tell my soul, "I am your salvation."
- <sup>4</sup> Let those who seek after my soul be disappointed and brought to dishonor. Let those who plot my ruin be turned back and confounded.
- <sup>5</sup> Let them be as chaff before the wind, Yahweh's angel driving them on.
- <sup>6</sup>Let their way be dark and slippery, Yahweh's angel pursuing them.
- <sup>7</sup> For without cause they have hidden their net in a pit for me. Without cause they have dug a pit for my soul.
- <sup>8</sup>Let destruction come on him unawares. Let his net that he has hidden catch himself. Let him fall into that destruction.

## Psalm 103:17-22

- <sup>17</sup> But Yahweh's loving kindness is from everlasting to everlasting with those who fear him, his righteousness to children's children,
- <sup>18</sup> to those who keep his covenant,
- to those who remember to obey his precepts.
- <sup>19</sup> Yahweh has established his throne in the heavens. His kingdom rules over all.
- <sup>20</sup> Praise Yahweh, you angels of his, who are mighty in strength, who fulfill his word, obeying the voice of his word.
- <sup>21</sup> Praise Yahweh, all you armies of his, you servants of his, who do his pleasure.
- <sup>22</sup> Praise Yahweh, all you works of his, in all places of his dominion.
  - Praise Yahweh, my soul!

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and

I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is for you a WALL of FIRE surrounding you; and He is the

authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelation 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

GLORY within you!

- I decree and declare you LIVE in the SHELTER of the Most High/'Elyon, and SPEND your Nights in the SHADOW of the Almighty/Shaddai! You declare to the Lord/Adonai, "My REFUGE! My FORTRESS! My God, in Whom I TRUST!
- I decree and declare and PRAISE Your Name Lord/Adonai for You RESCUE me from the trap of the hunter and from the plague of calamities; You COVER me with Your PINIONS, and I find REFUGE under Your WINGS; Your TRUTH is my SHIELD and PROTECTION!
- I decree and declare I AM SAFE! A thousand my fall at my side, ten thousand at my right hand, but it won't come near me! I will KEEP MY EYES OPEN and SEE how the wicked are PUNISHED; they will be CRUSHED and DESTROYED by the Hand of the Lord/Adonai.
- I decree and declare God's/Elohim's Angels CARE for me and GUARD me wherever I go. They CARRY me in their hands, so that I won't trip. I TREAD DOWN lions and snakes, young lions and serpents – I TRAMPLE them underfoot.
- I decree and declare God Almighty/El Shaddai says to you, "Because you LOVE Me, I will RESCUE you; because you KNOW My Name, I will PROTECT you. When you CALL on Me, I WILL ANSWER YOU. I will be with you when you are in trouble. I WILL EXTRICATE YOU and BRING YOU HONOR!
- I decree and declare the Lord DEFENDS you, His Chosen People, and SAVES you, for His own sake. In the night the Angel of the Lord/Adonai will strike down your enemies. They have no defense against the SOVEREIGNTY of the Lord Most High/Adonai 'Elyon.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai OPPOSES those who oppose me; He FIGHTS AGAINST those who fight against me. The Lord is my DEFENSE, with SHIELD and BATTLE AXE He cuts down my pursuers. The Lord is MY SALVATION!
- I decree and declare that those who seek my life will be DISGRACED and put into CONFUSION; those who are plotting harm for me will be REPULSED and PUT to SHAME! They are like chaff before the Wind with the Angel of the Lord/Adonai driving them on.
- I decree and declare those who have hid their nets over a pit; unprovoked, they dug it for me, will be OVERCOME and DESTROYED: the net they concealed will CATCH themselves!
- I decree and declare the MERCY of the Lord/Adonai is from Eternity Past to Eternity Future upon those who FEAR Him, and His RIGHTEOUSNESS extends to his Children's children, provided they KEEP His COVENANT and remember to FOLLOW His precepts.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai has ESTABLISHED His Throne in Heaven; His Kingly POWER Rules Everything! His Angels BLESS Him; His Angels, the Mighty Warriors who OBEY His Word, who CARRY OUT His ORDERS!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 10, 2019]

## You are Protected by the Spirit of God!

Acts 13:2-13; 16:6-10, 20-32; 1 Thessalonians 1:2-10 (WEB)

## Acts 13:2-13

<sup>2</sup> As they served the Lord and fasted, the Holy Spirit said, "Separate Barnabas and Saul for me, for the work to which I have called them."

<sup>3</sup>Then, when they had fasted and prayed and laid their hands on them, they sent them away. <sup>4</sup>So, being sent out by the Holy Spirit, they went down to Seleucia. From there they sailed to Cyprus. <sup>5</sup> When they were at Salamis, they proclaimed God's word in the Jewish synagogues. They also had John as their attendant. <sup>6</sup> When they had gone through the island to Paphos, they found a certain sorcerer, a false prophet, a Jew, whose name was Bar Jesus, <sup>7</sup> who was with the proconsul, Sergius Paulus, a man of understanding. This man summoned Barnabas and Saul, and sought to hear the word of God. <sup>8</sup> But Elymas the sorcerer (for so is his name by interpretation) withstood them, seeking to turn the proconsul away from the faith. <sup>9</sup> But Saul, who is also called Paul, filled with the Holy Spirit, fastened his eyes on him, <sup>10</sup> and said, "You son of the devil, full of all deceit and all cunning, you enemy of all righteousness, will you not cease to pervert the right ways of the Lord? <sup>11</sup> Now, behold, the hand of the Lord is on you, and you will be blind, not seeing the sun for a season!"

Immediately a mist and darkness fell on him. He went around seeking someone to lead him by the hand. <sup>12</sup> Then the proconsul, when he saw what was done, believed, being astonished at the teaching of the Lord.

<sup>13</sup> Now Paul and his company set sail from Paphos, and came to Perga in Pamphylia. John departed from them and returned to Jerusalem.

### Acts 16:6-10, 20-32

<sup>6</sup> When they had gone through the region of Phrygia and Galatia, they were forbidden by the Holy Spirit to speak the word in Asia. <sup>7</sup> When they had come opposite Mysia, they tried to go into Bithynia, but the Spirit didn't allow them. <sup>8</sup> Passing by Mysia, they came down to Troas. <sup>9</sup> A vision appeared to Paul in the night. There was a man of Macedonia standing, begging him, and saying, "Come over into Macedonia and help us." <sup>10</sup> When he had seen the vision, immediately we sought to go out to Macedonia, concluding that the Lord had called us to preach the Good News to them.

<sup>20</sup> When they had brought them to the magistrates, they said, "These men, being Jews, are agitating our city <sup>21</sup> and advocate customs which it is not lawful for us to accept or to observe, being Romans."

<sup>22</sup> The multitude rose up together against them and the magistrates tore their clothes from them, then commanded them to be beaten with rods. <sup>23</sup> When they had laid many stripes on them, they threw them into prison, charging the jailer to keep them safely, <sup>24</sup> who, having received such a command, threw them into the inner prison, and secured their feet in the stocks.

<sup>25</sup> But about midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God, and the prisoners were listening to them. <sup>26</sup> Suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken; and immediately all the doors were opened, and everyone's bonds were loosened. <sup>27</sup> The jailer, being roused out of sleep and seeing the prison doors open, drew his sword and was about to kill himself, supposing that the prisoners had escaped. <sup>28</sup> But Paul cried with a loud voice, saying, "Don't harm yourself, for we are all here!"

<sup>29</sup> He called for lights, sprang in, fell down trembling before Paul and Silas, <sup>30</sup> brought them out, and said, "Sirs, what must I do to be saved?"

<sup>31</sup> They said, "Believe in the Lord Jesus Christ, and you will be saved, you and your household." <sup>32</sup> They spoke the word of the Lord to him, and to all who were in his house.

## 1 Thessalonians 1:2-10

<sup>2</sup> We always give thanks to God for all of you, mentioning you in our prayers, <sup>3</sup> remembering without ceasing your work of faith and labor of love and perseverance of hope in our Lord Jesus Christ, before our God and Father. <sup>4</sup> We know, brothers loved by God, that you are chosen, <sup>5</sup> and that our Good News came to you not in word only, but also in power, and in the Holy Spirit, and with much assurance. You know what kind of men we showed ourselves to be among you for your sake. <sup>6</sup> You became imitators of us and of the Lord, having received the word in much affliction, with joy of the Holy Spirit, <sup>7</sup> so that you became an example to all who believe in Macedonia and in Achaia. <sup>8</sup> For from you the word of the Lord has been declared, not only in Macedonia and Achaia, but also in every place your faith toward God has gone out, so that we need not to say anything. <sup>9</sup> For they themselves report concerning us what kind of a reception we had from you, and how you turned to God from idols, to serve a living and true God, <sup>10</sup> and to wait for his Son from heaven, whom he raised from the dead: Jesus, who delivers us from the wrath to come.

- I decree and declare as you are SEEKING the Lord/Adonai and FASTING, the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh is DIRECTING YOU to SHARE His Word and to SET ASIDE OTHERS for His Work. He has called you to do GREAT THINGS!
- I decree and declare you will PROCLAIM God's/Elohim's Word wherever you go. It is BURNING within you and must be RELEASED! His DISCERNMENT is growing within you so that you will RECOGNIZE when the spirit of the enemy, of Anti-Christ is at work.
- I decree and declare Leaders in high ranking, Rulers, Presidents, Governors and more, will CALL for YOU for they are ANXIOUS to HEAR the message about God/Elohim, the Good News of Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua our Lord!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is FILLING you to SPEAK HIS TRUTH in BOLDNESS! The enemy is working to draw those in our midst from the TRUTH; his spell must be BROKEN, in Jesus'/Yeshua's Name. Speak BOLDLY to those who speak evil, "You son of satan, full of fraud and evil! You enemy of everything good! The hand of the Lord is upon you; and for a while you will be BLIND, unable to see the sun." By miracles such as this, the People will BELIEVE!
- I decree and declare the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh will PROTECT and GUIDE you in all you do. Be SENSITIVE to His VOICE. You will be CAUTIONED of what not to say and where not to go. By visions you will be CALLED to Regions to answer the needs of the People who are calling out to Him.

- I decree and declare you will NOT be FEARFUL when you are brought before the Judges; the Lord/Adonai goes before you and PREPARES the WAY to give WITNESS of His Good News, Salvation of Christ/Messiah.
- I decree and declare God will send His Angels to RELEASE His Servants from Prison. All that takes place will bring SALVATION to the People, to those touched by the occurrences. God's Word must be declared, "Trust in the Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua, and you will be SAVED you and your Household!"
- I decree and declare I THANK GOD for you and what Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah has brought about in you: your TRUST produces ACTION, your LOVE HARD WORK, and your HOPE PERSEVERANCE!
- I decree and declare that God/Elohim has LOVED and CHOSEN you; that the Good News has become POWER, the HOLY SPIRIT/RUACH HAKODESH and TOTAL CONVICTION for you! In this way you have become a PATTERN for all Believers, for the Lord's message SOUNDS FORTH from you not just where you are, but EVERYWHERE your TRUST toward God becomes known.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 8, 2019]

## In God's Presence & by His Mercy You Will Remain Secure!

Exodus 33:17-23; Isaiah 63:7-9; Hosea 6:1-6; Romans 11:25-36 (WEB)

## Exodus 33:17-23

<sup>17</sup>Yahweh said to Moses, "I will do this thing also that you have spoken; for you have found favor in my sight, and I know you by name."

<sup>18</sup> Moses said, "Please show me your glory."

<sup>19</sup> He said, "I will make all my goodness pass before you, and will proclaim Yahweh's name before you. I will be gracious to whom I will be gracious, and will show mercy on whom I will show mercy." <sup>20</sup> He said, "You cannot see my face, for man may not see me and live." <sup>21</sup> Yahweh also said, "Behold, there is a place by me, and you shall stand on the rock. <sup>22</sup> It will happen, while my glory passes by, that I will put you in a cleft of the rock, and will cover you with my hand until I have passed by; <sup>23</sup> then I will take away my hand, and you will see my back; but my face shall not be seen."

### Isaiah 63:7-9

<sup>7</sup>I will tell of the loving kindnesses of Yahweh and the praises of Yahweh, according to all that Yahweh has given to us, and the great goodness toward the house of Israel, which he has given to them according to his mercies, and according to the multitude of his loving kindnesses. <sup>8</sup> For he said, "Surely, they are my people, children who will not deal falsely;" so he became their Savior. <sup>9</sup> In all their affliction he was afflicted, and the angel of his presence saved them. In his love and in his pity he redeemed them. He bore them, and carried them all the days of old. Hosea 6:1-6 "Come! Let's return to Yahweh; for he has torn us to pieces, and he will heal us; he has injured us, and he will bind up our wounds. <sup>2</sup>After two days he will revive us. On the third day he will raise us up, and we will live before him. <sup>3</sup>Let's acknowledge Yahweh. Let's press on to know Yahweh. As surely as the sun rises, Yahweh will appear. He will come to us like the rain, like the spring rain that waters the earth."

<sup>4</sup> "Ephraim, what shall I do to you? Judah, what shall I do to you? For your love is like a morning cloud, and like the dew that disappears early.
<sup>5</sup> Therefore I have cut them to pieces with the prophets;

I killed them with the words of my mouth.

Your judgments are like a flash of lightning.

<sup>6</sup> For I desire mercy, and not sacrifice; and the knowledge of God more than burnt offerings.

## Romans 11:25-36

<sup>25</sup> For I don't desire you to be ignorant, brothers, of this mystery, so that you won't be wise in your own conceits, that a partial hardening has happened to Israel, until the fullness of the Gentiles has come in, <sup>26</sup> and so all Israel will be saved. Even as it is written,

"There will come out of Zion the Deliverer,

and he will turn away ungodliness from Jacob.

<sup>27</sup> This is my covenant with them, when I will take away their sins."<u>Isaiah 59:20-21</u>; <u>27:9</u>; <u>Jeremiah 31:33-34</u>

<sup>28</sup> Concerning the Good News, they are enemies for your sake. But concerning the election, they are beloved for the fathers' sake. <sup>29</sup> For the gifts and the calling of God are irrevocable. <sup>30</sup> For as you in time past were disobedient to God, but now have obtained mercy by their disobedience, <sup>31</sup> even so these also have now been disobedient, that by the mercy shown to you they may also obtain mercy. <sup>32</sup> For God has bound all to disobedience, that he might have mercy on all.

<sup>33</sup>Oh the depth of the riches both of the wisdom and the knowledge of God! How unsearchable are his judgments, and his ways past tracing out!

<sup>34</sup> "For who has known the mind of the Lord? Or who has been his counselor?" Isaiah 40:13

<sup>35</sup> "Or who has first given to him,

and it will be repaid to him again?" Job 41:11

<sup>36</sup> For of him, and through him, and to him are all things. To him be the glory for ever! Amen.

- I decree and declare you will find FAVOR in the Lord's/Adonai's sight as you OBEY Him. To you who have found FAVOR, HE KNOWS YOU BY NAME! He is causing ALL HIS GOODNESS to pass before you; His Spirit/Ruach DWELLS within you!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai SHOWS FAVOR to whomever He chooses, and He DISPLAYS MERCY to whomever He will. You have been PLACED NEAR the Lord/Adonai, UPON the ROCK. You are SECURE, SATURATED and SURROUNDED by His PRESENCE as you REMAIN in the Rock Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua!

- I decree and declare I will RECALL the GRACE of the Lord/Adonai and His PRAISES, because of all that He has granted us and His GREAT GOODNESS toward Israel which He bestowed on us in keeping with His MERCY, in keeping with the greatness of His GRACE!
- I decree and declare God /Elohim became our SAVIOR. In all our troubles He was troubled, then the Angel of His Presence SAVED us, in His LOVE and PITY He REDEEMED us. He has LIFTED US UP and carried us throughout our days!
- I decree and declare we are RETURNING to the Lord/Adonai; for He has torn, and He will HEAL us; He has struck, and He will BIND our WOUNDS. He will REVIVE us, He will RAISE us UP; and we will LIVE in His PRESENCE!
- I decree and declare we are STRIVING to KNOW the Lord/Adonai more DEEPLY. We know that HE WILL COME, it is as CERTAIN as morning; HE WILL COME to us like the rain, like the spring rains that water the Earth!
- I decree and declare your LOYALTY WILL NO LONGER be like a morning cloud, like dew that DISAPPEARS QUICKLY. You have HEARD the Prophets and responded in a POSITIVE manner. The Judgment of the Lord has shown out from you as LIGHT. What God/Elohim desires is MERCY, not sacrifices, His KNOWLEDGE more than burnt offerings.
- I decree and declare a STONINESS is upon ISRAEL for a time, until the Gentile World ENTERS in its FULLNESS, and that it is in this way that ALL ISRAEL will be SAVED. For out of Zion/Tziyon came the REDEEMER, He will turn away ungodliness from Jacob/Ya'akov. They have been hated for the sake of the Nations, but were CHOSEN by God/Elohim and LOVED for the Patriarchs' sake. For God's/Elohim's FREE GIFTS and His CALLING are irrevocable.
- I decree and declare the DEPTH of the RICHES and the WISDOM and KNOWLEDGE of God/Elohim! HOW INSCRUTABLE are His JUDGMENTS! HOW UNSEARCHABLE are His WAYS! For from HIM and through HIM and to HIM are all tings. To Him be GLORY FOREVER! Amen!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 7, 2019]

## Spiritual Warfare

## God is Calling His Strong & Bold Warriors to Pray During the Night Watch!

Psalm 91:1-16; Acts 16:25-34; Luke 11:1-13 (WEB)

## Psalm 91:1-16

He who dwells in the secret place of the Most High will rest in the shadow of the Almighty.

<sup>2</sup> I will say of Yahweh, "He is my refuge and my fortress; my God, in whom I trust."

<sup>3</sup> For he will deliver you from the snare of the fowler, and from the deadly pestilence.

- <sup>4</sup> He will cover you with his feathers. Under his wings you will take refuge. His faithfulness is your shield and rampart.
- <sup>5</sup> You shall not be afraid of the terror by night, nor of the arrow that flies by day,
- <sup>6</sup> nor of the pestilence that walks in darkness, nor of the destruction that wastes at noonday.
- <sup>7</sup> A thousand may fall at your side, and ten thousand at your right hand; but it will not come near you.
- <sup>8</sup>You will only look with your eyes, and see the recompense of the wicked.
- <sup>9</sup> Because you have made Yahweh your refuge, and the Most High your dwelling place,
- <sup>10</sup> no evil shall happen to you, neither shall any plague come near your dwelling.
- <sup>11</sup> For he will put his angels in charge of you,
  - to guard you in all your ways.
- <sup>12</sup> They will bear you up in their hands,
  - so that you won't dash your foot against a stone.
- <sup>13</sup> You will tread on the lion and cobra.
- You will trample the young lion and the serpent underfoot.
- <sup>14</sup> "Because he has set his love on me, therefore I will deliver him.
- I will set him on high, because he has known my name.
- <sup>15</sup> He will call on me, and I will answer him.
  - I will be with him in trouble.
- I will deliver him, and honor him.
- <sup>16</sup>I will satisfy him with long life,
  - and show him my salvation."

## Acts 16:25-34

<sup>25</sup> But about midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God, and the prisoners were listening to them. <sup>26</sup> Suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken; and immediately all the doors were opened, and everyone's bonds were loosened. <sup>27</sup> The jailer, being roused out of sleep and seeing the prison doors open, drew his sword and was about to kill

himself, supposing that the prisoners had escaped. <sup>28</sup> But Paul cried with a loud voice, saying, "Don't harm yourself, for we are all here!"

<sup>29</sup> He called for lights, sprang in, fell down trembling before Paul and Silas, <sup>30</sup> brought them out, and said, "Sirs, what must I do to be saved?"

<sup>31</sup> They said, "Believe in the Lord Jesus Christ, and you will be saved, you and your household." <sup>32</sup> They spoke the word of the Lord to him, and to all who were in his house.

<sup>33</sup> He took them the same hour of the night and washed their stripes, and was immediately baptized, he and all his household. <sup>34</sup> He brought them up into his house, and set food before them, and rejoiced greatly, with all his household, having believed in God.

## Luke 11:1-13

When he finished praying in a certain place, one of his disciples said to him, "Lord, teach us to pray, just as John also taught his disciples."

<sup>2</sup>He said to them, "When you pray, say,

'Our Father in heaven,

may your name be kept holy.

May your Kingdom come.

May your will be done on earth, as it is in heaven.

<sup>3</sup>Give us day by day our daily bread.

<sup>4</sup> Forgive us our sins,

for we ourselves also forgive everyone who is indebted to us.

Bring us not into temptation,

but deliver us from the evil one."

<sup>5</sup> He said to them, "Which of you, if you go to a friend at midnight, and tell him, 'Friend, lend me three loaves of bread, <sup>6</sup> for a friend of mine has come to me from a journey, and I have nothing to set before him,' <sup>7</sup> and he from within will answer and say, 'Don't bother me. The door is now shut, and my children are with me in bed. I can't get up and give it to you'? <sup>8</sup>I tell you, although he will not rise and give it to him because he is his friend, yet because of his persistence, he will get up and give him as many as he needs.

<sup>9</sup> "I tell you, keep asking, and it will be given you. Keep seeking, and you will find. Keep knocking, and it will be opened to you. <sup>10</sup> For everyone who asks receives. He who seeks finds. To him who knocks it will be opened.

<sup>11</sup> "Which of you fathers, if your son asks for bread, will give him a stone? Or if he asks for a fish, he won't give him a snake instead of a fish, will he? <sup>12</sup> Or if he asks for an egg, he won't give him a scorpion, will he? <sup>13</sup> If you then, being evil, know how to give good gifts to your children, how much more will your heavenly Father give the Holy Spirit to those who ask him?"

- I decree and declare you are the STRONG and BOLD Warriors of the Most High/'Elyon who live in His Shelter; you SPEND YOUR NIGHTS in PRAYER in the Shadow of the Almighty/Shaddai! You call unto the Lord/Adonai, "My REFUGE! My FORTRESS! My GOD/ELOHAI in Whom I TRUST!
- I decree and declare, DURING the NIGHT WATCH, the Lord/Adonai RESCUES you from the trap of the hunter and from the plague of calamities; HE COVERS YOU with His pinions, and under His WINGS you will find REFUGE; His TRUTH is a Shield and PROTECTION!
- I decree and declare the Lord is PROTECTING you, and those you lift in PRAYER, during the Night Watch. You will not fear the terrors of Night or the arrow that flies by day, or the plague that roams in the dark, or the scourge that wreaks havoc at noon!
- I decree and declare you have made the Lord/Adonai, the Most High/'Elyon your DWELLING PLACE. No disaster will happen to you, no calamity will come near your tent; for He has ordered His Angels to CARE for you and GUARD you wherever you are, ALWAYS. They carry you in their hands, so that you won't stumble.
- I decree and declare, during your PRAYER TIMES and during your daytime walk, you will TREAD DOWN lions and snakes, young lions and serpents: all forms of demonic powers – you will TRAMPLE them UNDERFOOT! The Lord/Adonai RESCUES you because you LOVE Him and you KNOW His Name!
- I decree and declare FREEDOM and RELEASE are coming in the Midnight Hour! The Lord is ANOINTING and EMPOWERING His Word and His People to break the STRONGHOLDS in families, regions and Nations, in the Night.
- I decree and declare the PRAYERS spoken in the Night will RESULT in the SALVATION of Multitudes! Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh is ministering and drawing Households, Families and Nations to the Lord!
- I decree and declare you PRAY always, keeping the Name of the Father God/Abba Elohim HOLY. Your SIGHT is on His Kingdom coming to Earth; your WORDS are BREAKING THROUGH the Atmosphere to bring it to pass.
- I decree and declare I come before the Father/Abba in REPENTANCE and walk in FORGIVENESS towards all who have wronged me. God/Elohim will not lead me into temptation or hard testing. I am able to RISE above all CHALLENGES and DIFFICULTIES for He is with me and His Angels encircle me; He is my STRONG TOWER!
- I decree and declare to you: KEEP ASKING, and it will be given to you; KEEP SEEKING, and you will FIND; KEEP KNOCKING, and the DOOR will be opened to you. For Everyone who goes on asking RECEIVES; and he who goes on seeking FINDS; and to him who continues knocking, the DOOR will be OPENED! The Father/Abba will keep giving Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh from Heaven to those who keep asking Him!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 15, 2019]

## As Worship Warriors You Reveal Christ on Earth!

Psalms 23:5-6; 150:1-6; Romans 13:8-14; Galatians 3:23-29; Philippians 3:1-16 (WEB)

### Psalm 150:1-6

Praise Yah! Praise God in his sanctuary! Praise him in his heavens for his acts of power! <sup>2</sup> Praise him for his mighty acts! Praise him according to his excellent greatness! <sup>3</sup> Praise him with the sounding of the trumpet! Praise him with harp and lyre! <sup>4</sup> Praise him with tambourine and dancing! Praise him with stringed instruments and flute! <sup>5</sup> Praise him with loud cymbals! Praise him with resounding cymbals! <sup>6</sup> Let everything that has breath praise Yah! Praise Yah!

### Romans 13:8-14

<sup>8</sup>Owe no one anything, except to love one another; for he who loves his neighbor has fulfilled the law. <sup>9</sup>For the commandments, "You shall not commit adultery," "You shall not murder," "You shall not steal," "You shall not covet," <u>Exodus 20:13-15,17</u>; <u>Deuteronomy 5:17-19,21</u> and whatever other commandments there are, are all summed up in this saying, namely, "You shall love your neighbor as yourself." <u>Leviticus 19:18</u> <sup>10</sup> Love doesn't harm a neighbor. Love therefore is the fulfillment of the law. <sup>11</sup> Do this, knowing the time, that it is already time for you to awaken out of sleep, for salvation is now nearer to us than when we first believed. <sup>12</sup> The night is far gone, and the day is near. Let's therefore throw off the deeds of darkness, and let's put on the armor of light. <sup>13</sup> Let's walk properly, as in the day; not in reveling and drunkenness, not in sexual promiscuity and lustful acts, and not in strife and jealousy. <sup>14</sup> But put on the Lord Jesus Christ, and make no provision for the flesh, for its lusts.

### Galatians 3:23-29

<sup>23</sup> But before faith came, we were kept in custody under the law, confined for the faith which should afterwards be revealed. <sup>24</sup> So that the law has become our tutor to bring us to Christ, that we might be justified by faith. <sup>25</sup> But now that faith has come, we are no longer under a tutor. <sup>26</sup> For you are all children of God, through faith in Christ Jesus. <sup>27</sup> For as many of you as were baptized into Christ have put on Christ. <sup>28</sup> There is neither Jew nor Greek, there is neither slave nor free man, there is neither male nor female; for you are all one in Christ Jesus. <sup>29</sup> If you are Christ's, then you are Abraham's offspring and heirs according to promise.

### Psalm 23:5-6

<sup>5</sup>You prepare a table before me

in the presence of my enemies.

You anoint my head with oil.

My cup runs over.

<sup>6</sup>Surely goodness and loving kindness shall follow me all the days of my life,

and I will dwell in Yahweh's house forever.

## Philippians 3:1-16

Finally, my brothers, rejoice in the Lord! To write the same things to you, to me indeed is not tiresome, but for you it is safe. <sup>2</sup> Beware of the dogs; beware of the evil workers; beware of the false circumcision. <sup>3</sup> For we are the circumcision, who worship God in the Spirit, and rejoice in Christ Jesus, and have no confidence in the flesh; <sup>4</sup> though I myself might have confidence even in the flesh. If any other man thinks that he has confidence in the flesh, I yet more: <sup>5</sup> circumcised the eighth day, of the stock of Israel, of the tribe of Benjamin, a Hebrew of Hebrews; concerning the law, a Pharisee; <sup>6</sup> concerning zeal, persecuting the assembly; concerning the righteousness which is in the law, found blameless.

<sup>7</sup> However, I consider those things that were gain to me as a loss for Christ. <sup>8</sup> Yes most certainly, and I count all things to be a loss for the excellency of the knowledge of Christ Jesus, my Lord, for whom I suffered the loss of all things, and count them nothing but refuse, that I may gain Christ <sup>9</sup> and be found in him, not having a righteousness of my own, that which is of the law, but that which is through faith in Christ, the righteousness which is from God by faith, <sup>10</sup> that I may know him, and the power of his resurrection, and the fellowship of his sufferings, becoming conformed to his death, <sup>11</sup> if by any means I may attain to the resurrection from the dead. <sup>12</sup> Not that I have already obtained, or am already made perfect; but I press on, that I may take hold of that for which also I was taken hold of by Christ Jesus.

<sup>13</sup> Brothers, I don't regard myself as yet having taken hold, but one thing I do: forgetting the things which are behind, and stretching forward to the things which are before, <sup>14</sup> I press on toward the goal for the prize of the high calling of God in Christ Jesus. <sup>15</sup> Let us therefore, as many as are perfect, think this way. If in anything you think otherwise, God will also reveal that to you. <sup>16</sup> Nevertheless, to the extent that we have already attained, let's walk by the same rule. Let's be of the same mind.

- I decree and declare I PRAISE God/Elohim in His Holy Place! I PRAISE Him in the Heavenly DOME of His POWER! I PRAISE Him for His MIGHTY DEEDS and for His SURPASSING GREATNESS! Let Everything that has BREATH PRAISE the Lord/Adonai! Halleluyah!
- I decree and declare I owe no one anything except to LOVE them, because this is fulfilling God's/Elohim's Law. All the Commandments are summed up by one rule: Love your Neighbor as yourself.
- I decree and declare you know at what point of History we stand, so it is TIME for you to ROUSE yourselves from sleep; for the FINAL DELIVERANCE is nearer than when we first came to TRUST. The Night is almost over, the Day is almost here. So put aside the deeds of darkness and ARM YOURSELVES with the WEAPONS of LIGHT!
- I decree and declare we LIVE PROPERLY, as People do in the daytime not partying and getting drunk, not engaging in sexual immorality and other excesses, not quarrelling and being jealous. INSTEAD, you CLOTHE yourselves with the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah, not wasting your time thinking about how to provide for the sinful desires of your old nature.

- I decree and declare NOW is the TIME for TRUSTING FAITHFULNESS; in union with Christ/Messiah, you are all Children of God through this TRUSTING FAITHFULNESS; because as many of you as were immersed into Christ/Messiah have CLOTHED yourselves with Christ/Messiah, in Whom there is neither Jew nor Gentile, neither slave nor freeman, neither male nor female; for in union with Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, you are all ONE.
- I decree and declare You, Lord/Adonai, PREPARE a Table for me, even as my enemies WATCH; You ANOINT my Head with OIL from an Overflowing Cup! Goodness and GRACE will pursue me every day of my Life; and I will LIVE in the House of the Lord/Adonai FOREVER!
- I decree and declare I REJOICE in union with the Lord/Adonai. I WORSHIP b y the Spirit/Ruach of God/Elohim and make my BOAST in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua! I do not put confidence in human qualifications which, because of Christ/Messiah are now considered a disadvantage. I consider everything a disadvantage in comparison with the SUPREME VALUE of KNOWING Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua as my Lord/Adonai and Savior!
- I decree and declare I gave up everything in order to KNOW HIM, that is to know the POWER of His RESURRECTION and the FELLOWSHIP of His sufferings as I am being CONFORMED to His Death, so that somehow I might arrive at being resurrected from the dead.
- I decree and declare I keep pursuing the GOAL in HOPE of taking hold of that for which Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua took hold of me. This one thing I do: forgetting what is behind me and straining forward toward what lies ahead, I KEEP PURSUING the GOAL in order to win the prize offered by God's UPWARD CALLING in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.
- I decree and declare to the MATURE BELIEVERS, let us keep paying ATTENTION to this; and if you are DIFFERENTLY MINDED about anything, God will also REVEAL this to you. Only let our CONDUCT FIT the level we have already reached.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

### Inspired by:

Tim Katon's message <u>"Worship Warriors"</u> shared January 26, 2019, My Father's House Ministries; Des Moines, WA, USA. Video link:

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 27, 2019]

## **Rising Above**

## The Snares Have Failed – You are Moving Upward in the Name of Jesus Christ!

Psalm 25:15-22; 69:13-28; 142:1-7; Romans 16:17-20 (WEB)

## Psalm 25:15-22

- <sup>15</sup> My eyes are ever on Yahweh,
- for he will pluck my feet out of the net.
- <sup>16</sup> Turn to me, and have mercy on me,
- for I am desolate and afflicted.
- <sup>17</sup> The troubles of my heart are enlarged. Oh bring me out of my distresses.
- <sup>18</sup> Consider my affliction and my travail. Forgive all my sins.
- <sup>19</sup> Consider my enemies, for they are many.
- They hate me with cruel hatred.
- <sup>20</sup>Oh keep my soul, and deliver me.
- Let me not be disappointed, for I take refuge in you.
- <sup>21</sup>Let integrity and uprightness preserve me,
- for I wait for you. <sup>22</sup> God, redeem Israel
- out of all his troubles.

## Psalm 69:13-28

- <sup>13</sup> But as for me, my prayer is to you, Yahweh, in an acceptable time.
- God, in the abundance of your loving kindness, answer me in the truth of your salvation.
- <sup>14</sup> Deliver me out of the mire, and don't let me sink.
- Let me be delivered from those who hate me, and out of the deep waters.
- <sup>15</sup> Don't let the flood waters overwhelm me,
- neither let the deep swallow me up.
- Don't let the pit shut its mouth on me.
- <sup>16</sup> Answer me, Yahweh, for your loving kindness is good.
- According to the multitude of your tender mercies, turn to me.
- <sup>17</sup> Don't hide your face from your servant,
- for I am in distress.
- Answer me speedily!
- <sup>18</sup> Draw near to my soul and redeem it.
- Ransom me because of my enemies.
- <sup>19</sup> You know my reproach, my shame, and my dishonor. My adversaries are all before you.
- <sup>20</sup> Reproach has broken my heart, and I am full of heaviness.
   I looked for some to take pity, but there was none;
   for comforters, but I found none.
- <sup>21</sup> They also gave me poison for my food.
- In my thirst, they gave me vinegar to drink.
- <sup>22</sup> Let their table before them become a snare.
- May it become a retribution and a trap.
- <sup>23</sup> Let their eyes be darkened, so that they can't see.

Let their backs be continually bent.

- <sup>24</sup> Pour out your indignation on them.
- Let the fierceness of your anger overtake them.
- <sup>25</sup> Let their habitation be desolate.
  - Let no one dwell in their tents.
- <sup>26</sup> For they persecute him whom you have wounded. They tell of the sorrow of those whom you have hurt.
- <sup>27</sup> Charge them with crime upon crime.Don't let them come into your righteousness.
- <sup>28</sup> Let them be blotted out of the book of life, and not be written with the righteous.

## Psalm 142:1-7

I cry with my voice to Yahweh. With my voice, I ask Yahweh for mercy. <sup>2</sup>I pour out my complaint before him. I tell him my troubles. <sup>3</sup>When my spirit was overwhelmed within me, you knew my route. On the path in which I walk, they have hidden a snare for me. <sup>4</sup>Look on my right, and see; for there is no one who is concerned for me. Refuge has fled from me. No one cares for my soul. <sup>5</sup>I cried to you, Yahweh. I said, "You are my refuge, my portion in the land of the living." <sup>6</sup>Listen to my cry, for I am in desperate need. Deliver me from my persecutors, for they are too strong for me. <sup>7</sup> Bring my soul out of prison, that I may give thanks to your name. The righteous will surround me, for you will be good to me.

## Romans 16:17-20

<sup>17</sup> Now I beg you, brothers, look out for those who are causing the divisions and occasions of stumbling, contrary to the doctrine which you learned, and turn away from them. <sup>18</sup> For those who are such don't serve our Lord, Jesus Christ, but their own belly; and by their smooth and flattering speech, they deceive the hearts of the innocent. <sup>19</sup> For your obedience has become known to all. I rejoice therefore over you. But I desire to have you wise in that which is good, but innocent in that which is evil. <sup>20</sup> And the God of peace will quickly crush Satan under your feet.

The grace of our Lord Jesus Christ be with you.

- I decree and declare my eyes are ALWAYS directed toward the Lord/Adonai, for HE frees my feet from the net. He turns to me and shows me FAVOR; I am no longer alone and oppressed. When I begin to feel overwhelmed, Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh LIFTS me up and brings me out of my distress!
- I decree and declare my sins have been removed by the SACRIFICE of God's/Elohim's Son, Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah. Though my enemies are many and they cruelly hate me, the Lord/Adonai PROTECTS and RESCUES me; for I take REFUGE in Him.
- I decree and declare INTEGRITY and UPRIGHTNESS PRESERVES me, because my HOPE is in God Almighty/El Shaddai alone!
- I decree and declare in Your GREAT GRACE, God/Elohim, YOU ANSWER ME with the TRUTH of Your Salvation! You RESCUE me from those who hate me and from the deep water. The Lord ANSWERS me when I CALL on Him; He DELIVERS me from my enemies. (Psalm 91:15)
- I decree and declare the harm that my enemies have intended for me is TURNED BACK on them; their plots have become SNARES for themselves. For those who will not TURN and REPENT may Your FURY, Lord/Adonai be poured out upon them; let Your FIERCE ANGER overtake the.
- I decree and declare I CRY to the Lord/Adonai; with my VOICE I PLEAD to Him for MERCY. Before Him I POUR OUT my Heart and tell of my trouble. When my spirit faints within me, HE WATCHES OVER MY PATH! Though the enemy has hidden a snare for me, it will not catch me.
- I decree and declare that what I perceive in the natural is deceptive: there seems to be no one who recognizes me; I have no way of escape and nobody cares for me. But I TURN MY EYES to Heaven and SEE! You, Lord/Adonai are There! You are my REFUGE, my portion in the Land of the living. You LISTEN to my cry, when I was brought very low. YOU RESCUE ME from my persecutors, for they are too strong for me.
- I decree and declare watch out for those within your congregations and gatherings who cause divisions and put snares ALONGSIDE the Teaching in which you have been TRAINED – KEEP AWAY FROM THEM. For people like these are not serving our Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah, but their own belly, by smooth talk and flattery they DECEIVE the innocent.
- I decree and declare your OBEDIENCE to God's/Elohim's Words is evident; for this we REJOICE. Be WISE concerning good, but INNOCENT concerning evil. God Who is the SOURCE of PEACE/SHALOM will soon CRUSH the Adversary under your feet. The grace of our Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua is with you!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

Inspired by: Kariuki, Symon. <u>"Breaking Loose from the Snare is your What Next."</u> Posted March 19, 2019, Facebook:.

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 21, 2019.]

## By God's Spirit You Have Arisen Stronger than Ever Before!

Genesis 50:19-20; Psalm 20:5-9; 144:1-11; Isaiah 45:1-7 (WEB)

### Genesis 50:19-20

<sup>19</sup> Joseph said to them, "Don't be afraid, for am I in the place of God? <sup>20</sup> As for you, you meant evil against me, but God meant it for good, to save many people alive, as is happening today.

### Psalm 20: 5-9

 <sup>5</sup> We will triumph in your salvation. In the name of our God, we will set up our banners. May Yahweh grant all your requests.
 <sup>6</sup> Now I know that Yahweh saves his anointed.

He will answer him from his holy heaven, with the saving strength of his right hand.

<sup>7</sup>Some trust in chariots, and some in horses,

but we trust in the name of Yahweh our God.

<sup>8</sup>They are bowed down and fallen,

but we rise up, and stand upright.

<sup>9</sup>Save, Yahweh!

Let the King answer us when we call!

## Isaiah 45:1-7

Yahweh says to his anointed, to Cyrus, whose right hand I have held, to subdue nations before him, and strip kings of their armor; to open the doors before him, and the gates shall not be shut:

<sup>2</sup> "I will go before you and make the rough places smooth. I will break the doors of bronze in pieces and cut apart the bars of iron. <sup>3</sup>I will give you the treasures of darkness and hidden riches of secret places, that you may know that it is I, Yahweh, who calls you by your name, even the God of Israel. <sup>4</sup> For Jacob my servant's sake, and Israel my chosen, I have called you by your name. I have given you a title, though you have not known me. <sup>5</sup>I am Yahweh, and there is no one else. Besides me, there is no God. I will strengthen you, though you have not known me, <sup>6</sup> that they may know from the rising of the sun, and from the west, that there is no one besides me.

I am Yahweh, and there is no one else.

<sup>7</sup> I form the light and create darkness.
I make peace and create calamity.
I am Yahweh, who does all these things.

## Psalm 144:1-11

Blessed be Yahweh, my rock, who teaches my hands to war, and my fingers to battle: <sup>2</sup> my loving kindness, my fortress, my high tower, my deliverer, my shield, and he in whom I take refuge, who subdues my people under me. <sup>3</sup>Yahweh, what is man, that you care for him? Or the son of man, that you think of him? <sup>4</sup>Man is like a breath. His days are like a shadow that passes away. <sup>5</sup> Part your heavens, Yahweh, and come down. Touch the mountains, and they will smoke. <sup>6</sup>Throw out lightning, and scatter them. Send out your arrows, and rout them. <sup>7</sup>Stretch out your hand from above, rescue me, and deliver me out of great waters, out of the hands of foreigners, <sup>8</sup> whose mouths speak deceit, whose right hand is a right hand of falsehood. <sup>9</sup>I will sing a new song to you, God. On a ten-stringed lyre, I will sing praises to you. <sup>10</sup> You are he who gives salvation to kings,

who rescues David, his servant, from the deadly sword. <sup>11</sup>Rescue me, and deliver me out of the hands of foreigners,

whose mouths speak deceit, whose right hand is a right hand of falsehood.

- I decree and declare YOU ARE NOT TO FEAR! Those things which the enemy meant to do you harm, God is TURNING AROUND for your GOOD – so that it will come about that many People's lives will be SAVED!
- I decree and declare we SHOUT for JOY at Your VICTORY, Lord/Adonai! You fulfill all the requests of His Chosen Ones. We KNOW that You give VICTORY to Your Anointed Ones You ANSWER them from Your Holy Heaven with MIGHTY VICTORIES by Your Right Hand!

- I decree and declare we PRAISE the Name of the Lord our God/Adonai Eloheinu. Our enemies will CRUMPLE and FALL, but we will ARISE and STAND ERECT. The Lord/Adonai gives VICTORY! He ANSWERS us when we call!
- I decree and declare the Lord has placed you where you are, it is not a mistake; He has grasped your Right hand to SUBDUE the Powers before you and strip those in control of their robes, so that DOORS OPEN in front of you, and no gates are barred!
- I decree and declare You, Lord/Adonai, go before me, levelling the hills, SHATTERING the bronze gates, SMASHING the iron bars. You give me TREASURES hoarded in the dark, SECRET RICHES hidden away, so that I KNOW that You, Lord/Adonai, are calling me by my name. You are the God/Elohim of Israel!
- I decree and declare and BLESS Your Holy Name, Lord/Adonai, that it is for the sake of Jacob/Ya'akov, Your Servant, yes, for Israel, Your Elect, that You CALL me by my name and give me a TITLE. You are SOVEREIGN and will anoint and bless any You Choose.
- I decree and declare Lord/Adonai You are BLESSED! You are my ROCK Who TRAINS my hands for war and my fingers for battle. You show me GRACE; and You are my FORTRESS, my STRONGHOLD, in Whom I find Shelter, my SHIELD, in Whom I take REFUGE, who SUBDUES People under me.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai NOTICES mere mortals; He THINKS about Humans. The Lord/Adonai lowers the Heavens and comes down; touches Mountains and makes them pour out Smoke. He shoots out LIGHTENING and scatters them; sends out His ARROWS and routs them!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai reaches out His Hands from on High and RESCUES me out of deep water, out of the POWER of Strangers whose mouths speak worthless words and whose right hands swear false oaths.
- I decree and declare God/Elohim, I will sing a New Song to You, sing PRAISES to You with a tenstringed harp. You give Kings their VICTORIES; You SAVE Your Servants from the cruel sword. You RESCUE me from all my enemies!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on my blog, Synergy of the Ages NW, March 16, 2019]

## The Obedient of the Lord are Being Raised Up!

Deuteronomy 26:16-19; 28:1-14; Psalm 18:46-50; 103:3-18 (WEB)

#### Deuteronomy 26:16-19

<sup>16</sup> Today Yahweh your God commands you to do these statutes and ordinances. You shall therefore keep and do them with all your heart and with all your soul. <sup>17</sup> You have declared today that Yahweh is your God, and that you would walk in his ways, keep his statutes, his commandments, and his ordinances, and listen to his voice. <sup>18</sup> Yahweh has declared today that you are a people for his own possession, as he has promised you, and that you should keep all his commandments. <sup>19</sup> He will make you high above all nations that he has made, in praise, in name, and in honor; and that you may be a holy people to Yahweh your God, as he has spoken.

#### Deuteronomy 28:1-14

It shall happen, if you shall listen diligently to Yahweh your God's voice, to observe to do all his commandments which I command you today, that Yahweh your God will set you high above all the nations of the earth.<sup>2</sup> All these blessings will come upon you, and overtake you, if you listen to Yahweh your God's voice. <sup>3</sup> You shall be blessed in the city, and you shall be blessed in the field. <sup>4</sup> You shall be blessed in the fruit of your body, the fruit of your ground, the fruit of your animals, the increase of your livestock, and the young of your flock. <sup>5</sup> Your basket and your kneading trough shall be blessed. <sup>6</sup> You shall be blessed when you come in, and you shall be blessed when you go out. <sup>7</sup>Yahweh will cause your enemies who rise up against you to be struck before you. They will come out against you one way, and will flee before you seven ways. <sup>8</sup>Yahweh will command the blessing on you in your barns, and in all that you put your hand to. He will bless you in the land which Yahweh your God gives you. <sup>9</sup> Yahweh will establish you for a holy people to himself, as he has sworn to you, if you shall keep the commandments of Yahweh your God, and walk in his ways. <sup>10</sup> All the peoples of the earth shall see that you are called by Yahweh's name, and they will be afraid of you. <sup>11</sup> Yahweh will grant you abundant prosperity in the fruit of your body, in the fruit of your livestock, and in the fruit of your ground, in the land which Yahweh swore to your fathers to give you. <sup>12</sup> Yahweh will open to you his good treasure in the sky, to give the rain of your land in its season, and to bless all the work of your hand. You will lend to many nations, and you will not borrow. <sup>13</sup> Yahweh will make you the head, and not the tail. You will be above only, and you will not be beneath, if you listen to the commandments of Yahweh your God which I command you today, to observe and to do, <sup>14</sup> and shall not turn away from any of the words which I command you today, to the right hand or to the left, to go after other gods to serve them.

### Psalm 18:46-50

- <sup>46</sup> Yahweh lives! Blessed be my rock.
  - Exalted be the God of my salvation,
- <sup>47</sup> even the God who executes vengeance for me, and subdues peoples under me.
- <sup>48</sup> He rescues me from my enemies.
  - Yes, you lift me up above those who rise up against me.
  - You deliver me from the violent man.
- <sup>49</sup> Therefore I will give thanks to you, Yahweh, among the nations, and will sing praises to your name.
- <sup>50</sup> He gives great deliverance to his king,

and shows loving kindness to his anointed, to David and to his offspring, forever more.

## Psalm 103:3-18

- <sup>3</sup> who forgives all your sins,
- who heals all your diseases,
- <sup>4</sup> who redeems your life from destruction,
- who crowns you with loving kindness and tender mercies,
- <sup>5</sup> who satisfies your desire with good things,
- so that your youth is renewed like the eagle's.
- <sup>6</sup> Yahweh executes righteous acts,
- and justice for all who are oppressed.
- <sup>7</sup> He made known his ways to Moses,
- his deeds to the children of Israel.
- <sup>8</sup> Yahweh is merciful and gracious,
  - slow to anger, and abundant in loving kindness.
- <sup>9</sup>He will not always accuse; neither will he stay angry forever.
- <sup>10</sup> He has not dealt with us according to our sins,
  - nor repaid us for our iniquities.
- <sup>11</sup> For as the heavens are high above the earth,
- so great is his loving kindness toward those who fear him.
- <sup>12</sup> As far as the east is from the west,
  - so far has he removed our transgressions from us.
- <sup>13</sup>Like a father has compassion on his children,
  - so Yahweh has compassion on those who fear him.
- <sup>14</sup> For he knows how we are made.He remembers that we are dust.
- <sup>15</sup> As for man, his days are like grass.
- As a flower of the field, so he flourishes.
- <sup>16</sup> For the wind passes over it, and it is gone.
- Its place remembers it no more.
- <sup>17</sup> But Yahweh's loving kindness is from everlasting to everlasting with those who fear him, his righteousness to children's children,
- <sup>18</sup> to those who keep his covenant,
  - to those who remember to obey his precepts.

- I decree and declare I will OBEY the Lord my God/Adonai Eloheinu: I will OBEY His Words with ALL MY HEART and ALL MY BEING! The Lord/Adonai is my God/Eloheinu and I will FOLLOW His WAYS, OBSERVE His Laws, Commandments and Rulings – to do WHATEVER HE SAYS!
- I decree and declare to the OBEDIENT: the Lord/Adonai agrees that you are His OWN UNIQUE TREASURE, as He Promised you; that you are to OBSERVE all His Commandments; and that He

will RAISE YOU HIGH above all the Nations and above the surrounding Peoples He has made, in PRAISE, REPUTATION and GLORY; and that, as He said, you will be a HOLY PEOPLE for the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu!

- I decree and declare you are BLESSED in the City and BLESSED in the Countryside. The BLESSING of the Lord/Adonai is on the fruit of your body, the fruit of your land and the fruit of your livestock. There is a BLESSING on your grain basket and your kneading bowl. You are BLESSED when you GO OUT and when you COME IN!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai causes your enemies attacking you to be DEFEATED before you; they will advance on you one way and FLEE before you seven ways!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai orders a BLESSING to be with you in EVERYTHING you undertake; He is BLESSING you in the Land that He has given you. The Lord/Adonai is ESTABLISHING you as a People SEPARATED OUT for Himself, as He has sworn to you if you will observe the Commandments of the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu and follow His Ways.
- I decree and declare all Peoples on Earth will SEE that the Lord's/Adonai's Name, His PRESENCE, is with you; so that they will be afraid of you. The Lord/Adonai will open for you His Good TREASURE to bless Everything you undertake. You will lend to many Nations and not borrow; the Lord/Adonai will make you the Head and not the Tail; and you will be only ABOVE; never below if you will LISTEN to, OBSERVE and OBEY the Commandments of the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is ALIVE! Blessed is my Rock! EXALTED is the God/Elohim of my SALVATION, the God/Elohim Who avenges me and SUBDUES Peoples under me. He DELIVERS me from my enemies. He LIFTS ME HIGH above my enemies, He RESCUES ME from violent men!
- I decree and declare I give THANKS to You, Lord/Adonai, among the Nations; I sing PRAISES to Your Name. Great SALVATION He gives to His Chosen Ones; He displays GRACE to His Anointed, FOREVER!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai SURROUNDS you with GRACE and COMPASSION, He contents you with Good as long as you live, so that your YOUTH is RENEWED like an Eagle's.
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai brings VINDICATION and JUSTICE to all who are oppressed. He is MERCIFUL and COMPASSIONATE, slow to anger and rich in GRACE. He has not treated us as our sins deserve or paid us back for our offenses, because His MERCY toward those who FEAR Him is as far above Earth as Heaven.
- I decree and declare the MERCY of the Lord/Adonai on those who FEAR Him is from Eternity Past to Eternity Future, and His RIGHTEOUSNESS extends to His Children's Children, provided they keep His Covenant and REMEMBER to follow His Precepts.
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 13, 2019]

## Hell Cannot Stop the Goodness & Mercy of God!

Psalm 143:1-12; Psalm 27:1-14; Matthew 16:13-19 (WEB)

## Psalm 143:1-12

Hear my prayer, Yahweh. Listen to my petitions. In your faithfulness and righteousness, relieve me. <sup>2</sup> Don't enter into judgment with your servant, for in your sight no man living is righteous. <sup>3</sup> For the enemy pursues my soul. He has struck my life down to the ground. He has made me live in dark places, as those who have been long dead. <sup>4</sup>Therefore my spirit is overwhelmed within me. My heart within me is desolate. <sup>5</sup>I remember the days of old. I meditate on all your doings. I contemplate the work of your hands. <sup>6</sup>I spread out my hands to you. My soul thirsts for you, like a parched land. Selah. <sup>7</sup> Hurry to answer me, Yahweh. My spirit fails. Don't hide your face from me, so that I don't become like those who go down into the pit. <sup>8</sup>Cause me to hear your loving kindness in the morning, for I trust in you. Cause me to know the way in which I should walk, for I lift up my soul to you. <sup>9</sup>Deliver me, Yahweh, from my enemies. I flee to you to hide me. <sup>10</sup> Teach me to do your will, for you are my God. Your Spirit is good. Lead me in the land of uprightness. <sup>11</sup> Revive me, Yahweh, for your name's sake. In your righteousness, bring my soul out of trouble. <sup>12</sup> In your loving kindness, cut off my enemies, and destroy all those who afflict my soul, For I am your servant. Psalm 27:1-14 Yahweh is my light and my salvation. Whom shall I fear? Yahweh is the strength of my life. Of whom shall I be afraid? <sup>2</sup>When evildoers came at me to eat up my flesh,

even my adversaries and my foes, they stumbled and fell.

<sup>3</sup>Though an army should encamp against me, my heart shall not fear. Though war should rise against me, even then I will be confident. <sup>4</sup>One thing I have asked of Yahweh, that I will seek after: that I may dwell in Yahweh's house all the days of my life, to see Yahweh's beauty, and to inquire in his temple. <sup>5</sup> For in the day of trouble, he will keep me secretly in his pavilion. In the secret place of his tabernacle, he will hide me. He will lift me up on a rock. <sup>6</sup>Now my head will be lifted up above my enemies around me. I will offer sacrifices of joy in his tent. I will sing, yes, I will sing praises to Yahweh. <sup>7</sup>Hear, Yahweh, when I cry with my voice. Have mercy also on me, and answer me. <sup>8</sup>When you said, "Seek my face," my heart said to you, "I will seek your face, Yahweh." <sup>9</sup> Don't hide your face from me. Don't put your servant away in anger. You have been my help. Don't abandon me, neither forsake me, God of my salvation. <sup>10</sup> When my father and my mother forsake me, then Yahweh will take me up. <sup>11</sup>Teach me your way, Yahweh. Lead me in a straight path, because of my enemies. <sup>12</sup> Don't deliver me over to the desire of my adversaries, for false witnesses have risen up against me, such as breathe out cruelty. <sup>13</sup>I am still confident of this: I will see the goodness of Yahweh in the land of the living. <sup>14</sup> Wait for Yahweh. Be strong, and let your heart take courage. Yes, wait for Yahweh.

### Matthew 16:13-19

<sup>13</sup> Now when Jesus came into the parts of Caesarea Philippi, he asked his disciples, saying, "Who do men say that I, the Son of Man, am?"

<sup>14</sup> They said, "Some say John the Baptizer, some, Elijah, and others, Jeremiah or one of the prophets."

<sup>15</sup> He said to them, "But who do you say that I am?"

<sup>16</sup> Simon Peter answered, "You are the Christ, the Son of the living God."

<sup>17</sup> Jesus answered him, "Blessed are you, Simon Bar Jonah, for flesh and blood has not revealed this to you, but my Father who is in heaven. <sup>18</sup> I also tell you that you are Peter, and on this rock I will build my

assembly, and the gates of Hades will not prevail against it. <sup>19</sup> I will give to you the keys of the Kingdom of Heaven, and whatever you bind on earth will have been bound in heaven; and whatever you release on earth will have been released in heaven."

- I decree and declare the Lord HEARS my pleas for MERCY! In His FAITHFULNESS and RIGHTEOUSNESS, He answers me! The Lord/Adonai will not bring me to trial, for on my own I cannot be righteous, but as His Child, through the CLEANSING and FORGIVENESS of His Son, Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, I am seen as PURE and SINLESS.
- I decree and declare though an enemy is pursuing me, and my spirit faints within me, I KNOW YOU, MY GOD/ELOHEINU, ARE WITH ME! I reflect on Your DEEDS, thinking about the work of Your Hands. I spread out my hands to You, I long for You like a thirsty Land. In Your MERCY, Lord/Adonai, YOU ANSWER ME; You do not hide your Face from me!
- I decree and declare in the morning Lord/Adonai you make me HEAR of Your LOVE for me, because I RELY on You. You make me KNOW the way I should walk, because I ENTRUST myself to You. Lord/Adonai, You RESCUE me from my enemies, for I have HIDDEN myself with You!
- I decree and declare You, Lord Holy Spirit/Adonai Ruach HaKodesh, TEACH me to do Your will, because You are my God/Elohim! You GUIDE me on ground that is level. For Your Name's sake, You PRESERVE my life; in Your RIGHTEOUSNESS, you bring me out of distress. In your GRACE, You CUT OFF MY ENEMIES and DESTROY all those harassing me, because I AM YOUR SERVANT!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is my LIGHT and SALVATION; I WILL NOT FEAR! He is the STRONGHOLD of my Life; there is NO ONE that will make me afraid! The Lord causes my enemies to STUMBLE and FALL! Even if an army encamps against me, MY HEART WILL NOT FEAR, if war breaks out against me, even then I WILL KEEP TRUSTING!
- I decree and declare the ONE THING I SEEK is to LIVE in the HOUSE of the Lord/Adonai ALL the DAYS of MY LIFE, to SEE the BEAUTY of the Lord/Adonai and visit His Temple! For He CONCEALS me in the Shelter on the day of trouble, He will HIDE me in the folds of His tent, He will set me high on a ROCK!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai sets me HIGH above my surrounding foes! I offer Sacrifices with SHOUTS of JOY; I SING, SING PRAISES to the Lord/Adonai! He LISTENS to me and shows me FAVOR. Your FACE do I seek Lord/Adonai!
- I decree and declare even though my mother and father have left me, Lord/Adonai, YOU, will CARE for me. You TEACH me Your Way, Lord/Adonai, and LEAD me on a LEVEL PATH because of my enemies. I put my HOPE in the Lord/Adonai, I am STRONG, and my Heart takes COURAGE! Yes, I put my HOPE in the Lord/Adonai!

- I decree and declare Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah is the Son of the Living God and my Savior. It is His Father in Heaven Who REVEALS this to us! Christ/Messiah is the ROCK and it is on Him that the Community of Believers is built, and the gates of Hell/Sh'ol WILL NOT OVERCOME IT! Jesus/Yeshua has given us the KEYS of the Kingdom of Heaven. Whatever you PROHIBIT on Earth is PROHIBITED in Heaven, and whatever you PERMIT on Earth is PERMITTED in Heaven!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 3, 2019]

## The Lord is Showing the Way – He is Your Supply!

Philippians 4:1-20; Matthew 6:7-13; Psalm 37:1-11 (WEB)

## Philippians 4:1-20

Therefore, my brothers, beloved and longed for, my joy and crown, stand firm in the Lord in this way, my beloved.

<sup>2</sup> I exhort Euodia, and I exhort Syntyche, to think the same way in the Lord. <sup>3</sup> Yes, I beg you also, true partner, help these women, for they labored with me in the Good News with Clement also, and the rest of my fellow workers, whose names are in the book of life.

<sup>4</sup> Rejoice in the Lord always! Again I will say, "Rejoice!" <sup>5</sup> Let your gentleness be known to all men. The Lord is at hand. <sup>6</sup> In nothing be anxious, but in everything, by prayer and petition with thanksgiving, let your requests be made known to God. <sup>7</sup> And the peace of God, which surpasses all understanding, will guard your hearts and your thoughts in Christ Jesus.

<sup>8</sup> Finally, brothers, whatever things are true, whatever things are honorable, whatever things are just, whatever things are pure, whatever things are lovely, whatever things are of good report: if there is any virtue and if there is any praise, think about these things. <sup>9</sup> The things which you learned, received, heard, and saw in me: do these things, and the God of peace will be with you.

<sup>10</sup> But I rejoice in the Lord greatly, that now at length you have revived your thought for me; in which you did indeed take thought, but you lacked opportunity. <sup>11</sup> Not that I speak because of lack, for I have learned in whatever state I am, to be content in it. <sup>12</sup> I know how to be humbled, and I also know how to abound. In everything and in all things I have learned the secret both to be filled and to be hungry, both to abound and to be in need. <sup>13</sup> I can do all things through Christ, who strengthens me. <sup>14</sup> However you did well that you shared in my affliction. <sup>15</sup> You yourselves also know, you Philippians, that in the beginning of the Good News, when I departed from Macedonia, no assembly shared with me in the matter of giving and receiving but you only. <sup>16</sup> For even in Thessalonica you sent once and again to my need. <sup>17</sup> Not that I seek for the gift, but I seek for the fruit that increases to your account. <sup>18</sup> But I have all things and abound. I am filled, having received from Epaphroditus the things that came from you, a sweet-smelling fragrance, an acceptable and well-pleasing sacrifice to God. <sup>19</sup> My God will supply every need of yours according to his riches in glory in Christ Jesus. <sup>20</sup> Now to our God and Father be the glory forever and ever! Amen.

## Matthew 6:7-13

<sup>7</sup> In praying, don't use vain repetitions as the Gentiles do; for they think that they will be heard for their much speaking. <sup>8</sup>Therefore don't be like them, for your Father knows what things you need before you ask him. <sup>9</sup> Pray like this:

"'Our Father in heaven, may your name be kept holy.

<sup>10</sup> Let your Kingdom come.

Let your will be done on earth as it is in heaven.

- <sup>11</sup>Give us today our daily bread.
- <sup>12</sup> Forgive us our debts,
- as we also forgive our debtors.
- <sup>13</sup> Bring us not into temptation,

but deliver us from the evil one. For yours is the Kingdom, the power, and the glory forever. Amen.'

## Psalm 37:1-11

Don't fret because of evildoers, neither be envious against those who work unrighteousness. <sup>2</sup> For they shall soon be cut down like the grass, and wither like the green herb. <sup>3</sup>Trust in Yahweh, and do good. Dwell in the land, and enjoy safe pasture. <sup>4</sup>Also delight yourself in Yahweh, and he will give you the desires of your heart. <sup>5</sup>Commit your way to Yahweh. Trust also in him, and he will do this: <sup>6</sup>he will make your righteousness shine out like light, and your justice as the noon day sun. <sup>7</sup>Rest in Yahweh, and wait patiently for him. Don't fret because of him who prospers in his way, because of the man who makes wicked plots happen. <sup>8</sup>Cease from anger, and forsake wrath. Don't fret; it leads only to evildoing. <sup>9</sup> For evildoers shall be cut off, but those who wait for Yahweh shall inherit the land. <sup>10</sup> For yet a little while, and the wicked will be no more. Yes, though you look for his place, he isn't there. <sup>11</sup> But the humble shall inherit the land, and shall delight themselves in the abundance of peace.

- I decree and declare you will KEEP STANDING FIRM in UNION with the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah. You will ALWAYS REJOICE in UNION with Him! Everyone will see how REASONABLE and GENTLE you are.
- I decree and declare the Lord is NEAR! You will not worry about anything; you will MAKE YOUR REQUESTS KNOWN to God/Elohim in PRAYER and PETITION, with THANKSGIVING. As you do, the PEACE/SHALOM of God/Elohim will KEEP your hearts and minds SAFE in union with Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua.
- I decree and declare you are learning to FOCUS your THOUGHTS on what is true, noble, righteous, pure, lovable or admirable, on some virtue or on something praiseworthy. As you focus your thoughts, your WORDS will be positive and you will LOOK UP to SEE your situation from God's PERSPECTIVE and not from the Earthly point of view.
- I decree and declare you are learning to be CONTENT regardless of your CIRCUMSTANCES. Yes, you know what it is to want, and what it is to have more than enough in EVERYTHING and in

every way you are learning the SECRET of being FULL and being hungry, of having ABUNDANCE and being in need. You can do ALL THINGS through Christ/Messiah who gives you POWER!

- I decree and declare GOD WILL FILL EVERY NEED of yours according to His Glorious WEALTH, in union with Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua!
- I decree and declare your Father/Abba KNOWS what you NEED before you ask Him! As you pray, HONOR Him, declaring that His Name will be kept HOLY. You are SPEAKING His Kingdom, His Will, into EXISTENCE here on Earth as it is in Heaven.
- I decree and declare you THANK and BLESS the Lord for providing your food for each day; you ask Him for FORGIVENESS of all that you have done wrong and acknowledge that you have FORGIVEN those who have wronged you.
- I decree and declare the Father/Abba does not lead you into hard testing but KEEPS YOU SAFE from the evil one. For His KINGSHIP, POWER and GLORY are FOREVER and EVER. Amen!
- I decree and declare you don't allow yourself to be upset by evildoers nor envious of those who do wrong, for SOON they will WITHER like grass and fade like the green in the fields. TRUST the Lord/Adonai and do GOOD; settle in the Land and FEED on FAITHFULNESS!
- I decree and declare you will DELIGHT yourself in the Lord/Adonai, and He will give you your Heart's DESIRE. COMMIT YOUR WAY to the Lord/Adonai, TRUST in Him, and He will act. He will make your VINDICATION SHINE FORTH like the LIGHT, the JUSTICE of your cause like the Noonday Sun.
- I declare you will be STILL before the Lord/Adonai, WAIT PATIENTLY till He comes. Don't be upset by those whose way succeeds because of their wicked plans. STOP being ANGRY, put aside rage, and DON'T BE UPSET it leads to evil.
- I decree and declare evildoers will be CUT OFF, but those who HOPE in the Lord/Adonai will INHERIT the Land! Soon the wicked will be no more, but the MEEK will inherit the Land and DELIGHT themselves in ABUNDANT PEACE!
- I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit of God, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty; their actions will be of no effect to God's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 26, 2019]